
MEETING: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION PANEL

DATE: Friday 13th September, 2019

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: Town Hall, Bootle with video conferencing at Southport Town 
Hall

DECISION MAKER: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
PANEL

Councillor Lappin
Councillor Byrom
Councillor Doyle
Councillor Lynne Thompson

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Jayne Vincent
Consultation, Engagement and 
Performance Officer

Telephone: 0151 934 3840
Fax:
E-mail: Jayne.vincentl@sefton.gov.uk

The Cabinet is responsible for making what are known as Key Decisions, 
which will be notified on the Forward Plan.  Items marked with an * on the 
agenda involve Key Decisions
A key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution, is: -
● any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and 

Capital Programme approved by the Council and which requires a gross 
budget expenditure, saving or virement of more than £100,000 or more 
than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the greater

● any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact 
on a significant number of people living or working in two or more Wards

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A
Items marked with an * involve key decisions

Item 
No.

Subject/Author(s) Wards Affected

 
 1.  Welcome and apologies

 2.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested at a meeting where a 
disclosable pecuniary interest or personal 
interest arises, which is not already included in 
their Register of Members' Interests, to declare 
any interests that relate to an item on the 
agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest, he/she must withdraw from 
the meeting room, including from the public 
gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an 
interest, except where he/she is permitted to 
remain as a result of a grant of a dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest 
he/she must seek advice from the Monitoring 
Officer or staff member representing the 
Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting 
room, including from the public gallery, during 
the whole consideration of any item of business 
in which he/she has an interest or whether the 
Member can remain in the meeting or remain in 
the meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

 3.  Minutes of meeting held on Friday 12th July 
2019

(Pages 5 - 
14)

 4.  Matters Arising

 5.  Feedback & Evaluation Report - Mental 
Health/Resilience

(Pages 15 - 
42)

 6.  Update Report - Children & Young People's 
Plan / Verbal Update - Health & Wellbeing 
Strategy Engagement

(Pages 43 - 
46)

 7.  Proposal to undertake Public Engagement 
and Consultation Activity - Southport Market

(Pages 47 - 
58)



 8.  Proposal to undertake Public Engagement 
and Consultation Activity - Green Lane / 
Formby Conservation Area Management 
Plan

(Pages 59 - 
70)

 9.  Proposal to undertake Public Engagement 
and Consultation Activity - Council Tax 
Empty Homes Discount Consultation

(Pages 71 - 
90)

 10.  Proposal to undertake Public Engagement 
and Consultation Activity - Bootle Golf 
Course

(Pages 91 - 
100)

 11.  Any other Business

 12.  Date of next meeting - Friday 15th November 
2019, 10.00 a.m   Bootle Town Hall



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 

Meeting held on Friday 12th July 2019 
Commencing at 10.00 a.m. in the Committee Room at Bootle Town Hall. 

 
 
Present:  
  
Councillor Paulette Lappin (Chair) 
Councillor Lynne Thompson 
Dr Mike Homfray – VCF Sector & Equalities Representative 
Lyn Cooke – Communications & Engagement Manager, South Sefton and Southport 
& Formby CCG 
Nigel Bellamy - VCF Sector Representative 
Joanne Lee – Sefton Young Advisors 
Wendy Anderson – Healthwatch Sefton 
Jayne Vincent - Consultation & Engagement Lead 
Julie Murray – Advanced Practitioner, Public Health 
Anna Nygaard – Acting Consultant, Public Health 
Michelle Knox - Development & Monitoring Officer, Transportation and Highways 
Infrastructure 
Cameron Ward – Programme Director, Health and Social Care Transformation 
Programme  
Ellie Moulton - Integrated Health and Social Care Manager 
Simon Evans – SMBC Senior Early Help Officer, Anti-Social Behaviour 
Paul McCann - VCF & Equalities Officer, Communities 
Sharon Eaton – Admin Support 
Lesley Smith – Admin Support 
 
Apologies: 
 
Councillor Mhairi Doyle, MBE 
Councillor Leslie Byrom 
Gill Cowley – Strategic Support 
 

 

 

Action 

1. Welcome and Apologies 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Doyle and 
Byrom, and Gill Cowley, Strategic Support.  

 

 

 

 

2. Declarations of Interest 

No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interests or personal 

interests were received. 

 

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 17th May 2019 are 
accurate. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

2 
 

 

 

Action 

4. Matters Arising 

Item 5 – the contact details for Steve Berquist were shared with the 
Panel. 

Item 8 – The SEND Joint Commissioning Strategy is tabled for the 
Engaging Patients Experience Group (EPEG) later in July 2019. 

Item 9 – Jayne Vincent met with Helen Armitage, and June McGill 

and reviewed the questionnaire following feedback from the Panel 

and feedback from the Improvement and Information Group. 

 

 

 

 

5. Feedback & Evaluation Report – Transportation and 

Highways Infrastructure Annual Survey 2018 

The Panel considered a feedback report of the Transportation and 

Highways Infrastructure Annual Survey 2018. 

Michelle Knox reported this survey and the questions were kept to 

the format of the Department for Transport (DfT) recommendations, 

with similar themes.  It is long and detailed, however, as Highways 

is one of Sefton’s biggest assets, it is important to continue to 

receive feedback.  The success of the 2018 survey was the increase 

in the number of responses. 

The survey was launched on social media which proved a success.  

The results were pleasing although not surprising as they were 

similar to previous years’ surveys. 

Mike Homfray asked if there was anything different that could be 

done next time?  Michelle responded that the length of the survey 

could be reviewed and the number of questions, reduced. Michelle 

also noted that the new system, Citizen Space is a more user-

friendly system and has the capability of signposting to other 

departments that may be mentioned in the survey. 

Mike also suggested more qualitative analysis could be applied to 

the survey, by looking for trends from key word searches, which may 

show up different points to consider and this could be followed up 

year on year. 

Michelle appreciated the suggestion and confirmed the new system 

will help with this. 

Joanne Lee suggested looking at how responses are expressed in 

the comments, which appear to show people are frustrated so it is 

equally important about the message being given back to people.  

Michelle acknowledged this and pointed out that most people will 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



 

3 
 

 

 

Action 

only mention negatives, as the positives are already ticked within the 

survey.  The new survey system will do more sign posting to enable 

feedback in between surveys. 

Councillor Lappin asked how does feedback work with social media.  

Michelle confirmed a link to previous year’s results is provided to 

access ‘You said, we did’ within the reports.  Unfortunately, the 

ability to know how many people access the questionnaire from 

social media is not currently available. 

The Panel thanked Michelle for the report. 

6. Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation 

Activity – Sefton NHS 5 Year Place Plan and ongoing work 

within the Sefton Health and Care Transformation Programme 

The Panel considered the report from the Health & Social Care 

Transformation Board to inform the Sefton NHS five-year Place Plan 

in reshaping Sefton and the broader work of the Sefton Health and 

Social Care transformation programme. 

Cameron Ward presented the report that sets out the proposed 

plans for stakeholder engagement as part of developing the five year 

plan that will not only support delivery of the work of the Sefton 

Health and Care Transformation Programme, but also align the work 

of other partners, such as Sefton Council, in the refreshment of its 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy for 2020 to 2025.  This is a 

requirement of the NHS Long Term Plan, published in January 2019. 

Wendy Anderson commented to be aware of the bi-monthly 

meetings of the Sefton Healthwatch Champions and Cameron 

agreed to discuss further following the Panel meeting. 

Jayne Vincent raised about the current status of the survey.  

Cameron has a draft list of questions and is trying to avoid 

duplication and would be interested in any feedback from this. 

Lyn Cooke asked how the Heath & Wellbeing Strategy will work 

together with this Plan, as there will be questions that cross both, 

and it is important not to cause confusion to residents. 

Cameron responded the Plan is based on the Health & Wellbeing 

Needs Assessment will focus on transforming health and social care 

over 5 years and reduce inequalities and Cameron is working closely 

with Matt Ashton, Director of Public Health, to avoid duplications. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cameron Ward 
/Wendy Anderson 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 

4 
 

 

 

Action 

Anna Nygaard endorsed Lyn’s point and the need to look at 

prevention.  Anna noted the large amount of work that has been 

carried out already over the last five years, and the need for 

commonality of language. 

Cameron agreed there is currently a difference in the use of 

language and this is being looked at.  Anna went on to state it’s about 

sharing the learning as there have been numerous engagement over 

the years and from a practical position, we need to show and 

overcome the challenges that were brought up.  

Cameron agreed to discuss further with Anna following the Panel 

meeting. 

Ellie Moulton raised about how the five-year Plan and the Health & 

Wellbeing Strategy fit together and stated this is a national challenge 

with the two Plans running alongside each other and hopefully both 

can learn from each other moving forward. 

Jayne Vincent confirmed she sent Dan Grice the top tips from the 

Improvement and Information Group in terms of engaging and how 

to communicate with the different groups and who will take part.  

Cameron thanked the Panel for the advice which will be pursued 

further. 

Councillor Lappin thanked Cameron for the report and looks forward 

to the feedback. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cameron Ward / 
Anna Nygaard 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cameron Ward 

7. Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation 

Activity – Children and Young People’s Plan 2020 

The Panel considered the report of the Children and Young People’s 

Plan 2020 that is currently being reviewed and updated to cover the 

period 2020 to 2025. 

Ellie Moulton informed Panel, the overview report started the journey 

up to 2020.  The points in the Plan are still valid and are working 

towards looking to 2025. 

The key priorities in the current Plan are to ensure children and 

young people have a positive education, a healthy start in life and 

into adulthood, improving quality of life and ensure positive 

emotional health and wellbeing. 

The intention is to have input, using the Joint Strategic Needs 

Assessment (JSNA) and existing groups. The draft Plan will be 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 8

Agenda Item 3



 

5 
 

 

 

Action 

presented to the Health & Wellbeing Board in December 2019 and 

then the second phase will begin between January and March 2020. 

Mike Homfray commented this looks good and covers a good range 

of groups, however, sometimes there is a tendency to keep minority 

group issues within those groups. We need to make sure we talk 

about those issues in mainstreams groups as well. 

Jayne Vincent raised about the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and 

Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) being linked up 

and share information together. 

Ellie agreed and confirmed this is being worked on and she is 

seeking advice for the best methods to use for each group of needs. 

The Panel thanked Ellie for the report and look forward to seeing the 

consultation materials at the September meeting.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ellie Moulton 

 

8. Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation 
Activity - Specialist Stop Smoking Service 

The Panel considered the report relating to the consultation plans 
being developed to review Sefton’s Specialist Stop Smoking Service 
to inform future commissioning and service development. 

Julie Murray informed Panel that in 2016, Sefton Council 
commissioned a Specialist Stop Smoking Service which is a 
fundamental part of the overall integrated wellness service ‘Living 
Well Sefton.’   

The service is driven to achieve a reduction in smoking prevalence 
in adults who require the most support, including people with poor 
mental health, pregnant women and people living in areas of 
greatest deprivation. 

As part of the commissioning cycle, it is necessary to review the new 
service delivery model to assess effectives, to inform future 
commissioning and service improvement. Consultation and 
engagement with key stakeholders is integral to this process. 

It is proposed that the consultation be carried out in 3 parts. The first 
part will be via online survey and the second part will be delivered 
through existing forums, team meetings. The third part will focus on 
young people who smoke and what they need in terms of support to 
reduce harm and quit smoking. This would inform a new 
development area within the current service offer. 

Julie confirmed they want to speak to people who went through the 
service in the last three years.  Also, speak to partners and look at 
whether relationships between other partners are as they should be.  
Also, engage with people who don’t use the service currently. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



 

6 
 

 

 

Action 

Lyn Cooke asked about partners, i.e. GP’s, is there something more 
specific that is not covered in the questionnaire? 

Julie confirmed they want to understand how relationships are 
working between pharmaceutical and contractual services. These 
two groups are more specific than general partners, who are easier 
to refer in.  

There is an online survey, however locality meetings will also be 
attended.  Lyn will support the attendance at locality meetings. 

Nigel Bellamy suggested it would be useful to talk to dentists. There 
should be a question included - ‘is the service needed’, and we also 
need to tease out people’s perceptions on whether vaping is not as 
harmful as smoking and similar thoughts. 

Julie agreed and feels that focus groups could glean this information. 
There is evidence that young people do try vaping and after 6 weeks, 
they give up; there are lots of different behaviours that need to be 
explored. 

Joanne Lee works with young people and she has been informed 
from young people who she works with, that generally, smoking is 
not the first choice, vaping is, so we do need to tease out why this 
is. 

Julie is working with partners with a model that will target the correct 
people and they will contact non-smokers – Joanne has offered 
support if Julie requires this to contact groups of young people. 

Mike Homfray suggested it is important to talk to people who don’t 
smoke and those who don’t want to; why have they chosen not to 
and what makes them not want to, this may assist smokers. 

Julie confirmed focus groups should assist with providing this 
information, although Mike did point out that sometimes in focus 
groups, not everybody feels at ease enough to speak out and so this 
requires a broader engagement, possibly telephone or 1:1 face-to-
face interviews as a follow up. 

As to why young people don’t smoke, the reason could be beauty 
referring to ‘yellow teeth.’ 

Councillor Thompson stated there is a strong perception that vaping 
is far less harmful than smoking, however, there needs to be 
education provided about this, because some flavoured vapes can 
cause issues. 

The Panel thanked Julie for the report and look forward to receiving 
the feedback and evaluation report. 

9. Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation  
Activity – Public Space Protection Order – Waterloo 

The Panel considered the report by The Senior Early Help Worker 

in the Anti-Social Behaviour Unit, to receive information regarding 

 

 

 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



 

7 
 

 

 

Action 

the consultation plans being developed and regard to the Public 

Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Waterloo. 

Simon Evans informed Panel there has been an increase in low level 

crime around the area of South Road, Waterloo.  The Police have 

tried to tackle this with limited success. The low-level crime is 

primarily over the weekend. 

The proposed PSPO will be in place for three years, after which 

there will be further consultation. The consultation period will be two 

weeks, whereby leaflets will be distributed to residential and 

businesses and there will be an online questionnaire together with 

an opportunity to phone in. 

Councillor Lappin asked why the consultation period is so short.  

This requires a lead from Councillors who have contact with 

residential groups. 

Simon responded that the Police have carried out a consultation with 

similar questions, so they will take those responses into 

consideration.  If they need to extend the deadline, Simon is willing 

to extend that. 

Councillor Lappin also suggested Simon contact Councillor Paul 

Cummins as he works closely with residential groups. 

Nigel Bellamy pointed out the typing error on page 5 which quoted 

an incorrect date.  Simon will amend. 

Councillor Thompson asked why Victoria Park was removed from 

the list of areas targeted.  Simon confirmed a decision had to be 

taken and a limit stipulated. 

Nigel Bellamy made Simon aware of previous consultations of this 

nature which affects young people, people can turn against what the 

consultation is about if their children are perceived as being 

harassed.  

Simon acknowledged this, however, there have been three PSPOs 

before this one, and there have been no complaints. 

Mike Homfray raised about it not being an offence to stand and 

speak to people on the street, and to be aware of the negative 

perception of young people. 

Joanne Lee followed on that people may not know why they are 

being stopped.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Simon Evans 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



 

8 
 

 

 

Action 

Simon agreed with the perception that is held by some people, and 

followed up with statistics that out of 1000 anti-social behaviour 

orders (ASBOs) 96% are adults, and very rarely does it involve a 

person under the age of 18 years; Councillor Lappin asked can we 

open with this information within the leaflet to dispel the perception. 

Jayne Vincent raised about various conversations that have taken 

place when pulling together a questionnaire, and whether equality 

and diversity questions should be included.  Jayne feels this is a 

wider conversation with Panel members, taking into consideration 

recent changes such as General Data Protection Regulation 

(GDPR) around personal information.   

Councillor Lappin pointed out about not knowing who the receiver of 

questionnaires is and whether questions are relevant to them or not. 

It was agreed to have this as a separate item on the next Panel 

agenda, but in the meantime to keep the Equality and Diversity 

questions as standard in all surveys. 

The Panel thanked Simon for the report and look forward to 

receiving the feedback and evaluation report. 

 

Simon Evans 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jayne Vincent 

10. Your Sefton Your Say Consultation Hub – demonstration 

Jayne Vincent provided a demonstration of the new Your Sefton, 

Your Say, consultation hub. 

This is a one stop shop for consultation and engagement, online.  It 

can also advertise events. 

There are fact banks included that can sign post to other websites. 

The new system will provide reports on analysis with high level data 

including graphs and data tables. 

Jayne added, the Provider of the Hub, has trained 10 people within 

the organisation with Jayne having trained 4 people, with more to be 

trained soon.  

Jayne can quality assure the system, as she will receive alerts when 

a survey is set up. 

Mike Homfray suggested that to ensure the system is effective, 

following a bedding in period of approximately 3 to 4 months, contact 

people who have used the survey and find out about their 

experience.  It would also be a good idea for the Panel to have 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



 

9 
 

 

 

Action 

experience of using and to test the system, and complete surveys 

and feed back. 

Councillor Lappin suggested devising a plan of actions and bring it 

back to Panel. 

Nigel Bellamy asked that during completion of a survey, is there the 

option to stop and save, and then return later to complete? 

Jayne confirmed yes, with the option to add an email address to link 

to the result, and the option to remove an entry if necessary. 

There is also online support for users. 

The Panel thanks Jayne for the demonstration. 

 

 

Jayne Vincent 

11. Any other Business 

Jayne Vincent attended a meeting with the Improving Information 

Group last month.  The question was raised about feedback and 

evaluation and should there be a minimum time to feed back 

following consultation? 

Councillor Lappin stated that this should be built into individual 

consultation reports to consider Officers’ own structures. The Panel 

would not know about each departments’ processes. 

Joanne added that this could be added to the consultation timelines 

in reports. 

Jayne also informed the Panel that the Improving Information Group 

advised to consider using the talking newspaper. 

Top tips – Jayne advised that the Top Tips document that the 

Improving Information Group devised are sent to the author of 

reports and the monitoring of whether the contacts had been 

contacted to take part in the consultation should be built as a 

standard into the feedback and evaluation forms 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jayne Vincent 

 

12. Date and time of next Meeting 

Friday 13th September 2019, 10am, Bootle Town Hall, with video-

conferencing to Southport Town Hall. 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: Friday 13th September 2019 
 
Title: Update of Public Engagement and Consultation Activity –  
 Mental Wellbeing Survey in Sefton Schools 
 
Report of:  Steve Gowland – Public Health Lead (Mental Health) 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 

1.1 To provide information with regard to the key findings of surveys that have 
taken place in Sefton schools with pupils and staff regarding their mental 
wellbeing and resilience. 

 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is to 

coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and consultation, 
in accordance with the standards for engagement and consultation. 

 
 2.2 In February 2019 approval was given to proceed with surveys in take place 

with children and young people, and staff within Sefton schools to 
establish current levels of emotional wellbeing.   

 
 2.3 The survey was facilitated and analysed by Liverpool John Moore’s 

University, who had been commissioned to evaluate the results as well as 
several mental resilience approaches taking place in Sefton schools. 

 
 2.4 This is the first time such wellbeing surveys (see appendices) have been 

carried out within Sefton. 
 
3. Wellbeing survey 
 

3.1 Sefton Council has been running a number of pilot projects as part of a 
programme to improve the mental resilience and wellbeing of children and 
young people. 

 
3.2 The aim of the programme was to test ways of providing early support in 

schools to build resilience and improve wellbeing in young people.  The 
programme was intended to help equip children and young people to deal 
better with difficult circumstances in their lives, so as to prevent them 
experiencing common mental health problems. 

 
3.3 To help fully understand the impact and learning from the programme and 

the various activities within, there was a need to carry out a full and 
comprehensive evaluation.  The evaluation reports are needed to inform 
policy, strategy, prioritisation and development of future activities and 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

services related to the mental resilience of children and young people in 
Sefton. 

 
3.4 The overall evaluation report would engage with schools and partners to 

measure and assess the impact of individual projects on the mental 
resilience of pupils, include feedback from young people, teachers and 
partners, using both quantitative and qualitative measures.   

 
3.5 This evaluation was carried out by Liverpool John’s University and saw 

the production of two evaluation reports (one for each stage):  
 

• Stage 1 – smaller projects which took place in 2017/18 – completed 
and available here 

• Stage 2 – larger scale activities from spring 2018 – report due 
September 2019 

 
3.6 To support the evaluation it was our intention to carry out an online 

wellbeing survey in Sefton schools focused on pupils and staff. 
 
3.7 The survey email was sent to all schools and once consent was returned 

to Liverpool John Moore’s University a secure link was sent to each school 
for them to use with staff and pupils.   

 
3.8 The surveys were ‘live’ for a period of 10 weeks though April into mid-June 

and the key findings were shared with schools at a conference in July.  No 
results for individual schools will be shared for the purposes of 
confidentiality. 

 
4 Student Wellbeing & Resilience Survey 
 

4.1 Sample characteristics 

Overall, students from 29 schools took part in the surveys, including 20 
primary schools, six secondary schools and three SEN schools. This 
equates to 29.0% of schools in Sefton. In total 2,309 students across 
school years 3-11 participated (1,347 primary students, 869 secondary 
students and 93 SEN students). Student sociodemographic data are 
presented in Table 1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16

Agenda Item 5

https://phi.ljmu.ac.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/Sefton-Stage-1-Final.pdf


Agenda Item 5 

 

 

Table 1: Student sociodemographic data 

  % (N) 

  
All  

students 
Primary 
students 

Secondary 
students 

SEN 
students 

SEX Male 50.3 (1,182) 50.8 (684) 50.1 (435) 67.7 (63) 
 Female 45.8 (1,077) 46.5 (626) 48.6 (422) 31.2 (29) 
 Missing 2.1 (50) 2.7 (37) 1.4 (12) 1.1 (1) 

AGE 
(YEARS) 

8 14.7 (340) 25.1 (338)  2.2 (2) 
9 32.1 (741) 54.8 (740)  1.1 (1) 
10 7.5 (173) 12.8 (173)  - 
11 8.8 (205) 4.7 (63) 15.8 (138) 5.4 (5) 

 12 12.7 (294)  32.8 (285) 10.6 (9.9) 
 13 8.1 (186)  19.8 (172) 15.1 (14) 
 14 11.1 (256)  27.5 (239) 18.3 (17) 
 15 2.3 (54)  2.5 (23) 33.3 (31) 
 16 0.5 (12)  - 12.9 (12) 
 Missing 2.1 (48) 2.4 (33) 1.5 (13) 2.2 (2) 

SCHOOL 
YEAR 

GROUP 

3 3.6 (84) 6.2 (84)  - 
4 40.7 (957) 70.7 (953)  4.3 (4) 
5 7.9 (183) 13.6 (183)  - 

 6 4.3 (100) 7.7 (100)  - 
 7 17.6 (407)  45.2 (393) 14.0 (13) 
 8 4.9 (112)  12.3 (107) 5.4 (5) 
 9 15.1 (348)  37.3 (324) 25.8 (24) 
 10 2.8 (64)  3.8 (33) 33.3 (31) 
 11 0.7 (16)  - 17.2 (16) 
 Missing 1.7 (39) 2.0 (27) 1.4 (12) - 

SCHOOL 
AREA 

Southport 23.5 (543) 22.9 (309) 26.9 (234) - 
Aintree/Litherland 8.2 (189) 8.5 (114) 8.6 (75) - 
Crosby/Waterloo 22.6 (522) 17.0 (229) 24.2 (210) 89.2 (83) 

Maghull 27.4 (633) 21.0 (283) 40.3 (350) - 
Bootle 8.5 (197) 13.9 (187) - 10.8 (10) 

Formby 9.7 (225) 16.7 (225) - - 

 

4.2 Resilience 

A modified 38-item version of the Student Resilience Survey (SRS) was 
used to measure students’ perceptions of their individual characteristics 
as well as protective factors in their environment from their family, school 
and community. The SRS is comprised of 11 subscales which measure 
different sources of resilience including: family connection; school 
connection; community connection; participation in home life; 
participation in school life; participation in community life; peer support; 
self-esteem; empathy; problem solving; and, goals and aspirations. 
Response options included: none of the time; rarely; some of the time; 
often; and all of the time. Responses on each item were dichotomised 
into positive (all of the time, often) and negative responses (none of the 
time, rarely, some of the time) for each item. Total scores for each source 
of resilience were calculated by averaging participant’s scores on each 
question related to that construct (e.g. family connection). Student’s 
scores on each resilience construct were then categorised as high (3.6-
5), moderate (2.5-3.5) and low (1-2.3). 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

4.3 Individual characteristics 

 

4.3.1 Self-esteem 

The sample mean score for self-esteem was 3.81 (SD=0.85). Two-thirds 
(68.8%; n=1,421) of students had high scores, 26.1% (n=539) had 
moderate scores, and 5.0% (n=104) had low scores. There was a 
significant association between sex and self-esteem score, with a higher 
proportion of females with low or moderate self-esteem scores, 
compared to males (Table 2; p<0.01). The proportion of students 
reporting high self-esteem scores was also significantly different across 
school type, with a higher proportion of primary school students having 
high self-esteem scores compared to secondary or SEN school students 
(Table 2; p<0.001). Similarly, high self-esteem scores were significantly 
more prevalent amongst students in years 3/4 and years 5/6 compared 
to years 7/8/9, and years 10/11 (Table 2; p<0.001). 

4.3.2 Empathy 

The sample mean score for empathy was 4.07 (SD=0.94). Seven in ten 
(70.6%; n=1,457) students had high scores, 23.8% (n=491) had 
moderate scores, and 5.6% (n=116) had low scores. There was a 
significant association between sex and empathy scores, with a higher 
proportion of males with low or moderate empathy scores, compared to 
females (Table 2; p<0.001). The proportion of students reporting high 
empathy scores was also significantly different across school type, with 
a higher proportion of primary school students having high empathy 
scores compared to secondary or SEN school students (Table 2; 
p<0.001). Empathy score was also significantly associated with year 
group, with the highest prevalence of low or moderate empathy scores 
amongst years 9/10/11 (Table 2; p<0.001). 
 

4.3.3 Problem solving 

The sample mean score for problem solving was 3.60 (SD=1.03). Six in 
ten (59.1%; n=1,220) students had high scores, 30.3% (n=626) had 
moderate scores, and 10.6% (n=218) had low scores. There was no 
significant association between sex and problem-solving score (Table 
2). Problem solving score significantly differed across school type, with 
a higher prevalence of low problem-solving scores amongst secondary 
and SEN school students, compared with primary students (Table 3; 
p<0.001). Problem solving scores were also significantly associated with 
year group, with the highest prevalence of low or moderate problem-
solving scores amongst years 7/8 and years 9/10/11 (Table 2; p<0.001). 

 

4.3.4 Goals and aspirations 

The sample mean score for goals and aspirations was 4.02 (SD=1.01). 
Almost seven in ten (67.6%; n=1,395) students had high scores, 25.2% 
(n=520) had moderate scores, and 7.2% had low scores. There was no 
significant association between sex and goals and aspirations score 
(Table 2). Goals and aspirations scores significantly differed across 
school type, with a higher prevalence of low goals and aspirations scores 
amongst SEN school students, compared with primary or secondary 

Page 18

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

school students. Goals and aspirations scores were also significantly 
associated with year group, with the highest prevalence of low or 
moderate scores amongst students in years 7/8 and years 9/10/11 
(Table 2; p<0.001). 
 

4.4 Protective factors 

 

4.4.1 Family connection and participation 

The sample mean score for family connection was 4.38 (SD=0.63). The 
majority (88.7%; n=1,922) of students had high scores, 10.0% (n=217) 
had moderate scores, and 1.2% (n=27) had low scores. There was no 
significant association between family connection score and sex (Table 
3). The proportion of students reporting high family connection scores 
was significantly different across school type, with a higher proportion of 
primary school students having high family connection scores compared 
to secondary or SEN school students (Table 3; p<0.001). Family 
connection score was also significantly associated with year group, with 
the highest prevalence of low or moderate family connection scores 
amongst students in years 9/10/11 (Table 3; p<0.001). 
 

4.4.2 The sample mean score for family participation was 3.53 (SD=0.93). 
Four in ten (42.7%; n=881) students had high scores, 47.5% (n=981) 
had moderate scores, and 9.8% (n=202) had low scores. The proportion 
of students reporting high family participation scores was significantly 
different across school type, with a higher proportion of primary school 
students having high family participation scores compared to secondary 
or SEN school students (Table 3; p<0.001). Family participation score 
was also significantly associated with year group, with the highest 
prevalence of low or moderate family participation scores amongst 
students in years 9/10/11 (Table 3; p<0.001). 

 

4.4.3 Community connection and participation 

The sample mean score for community connection was 4.38 (SD=0.63). 
The majority (87.6%; n=1,878) of students had high scores, 9.6% 
(n=206) had moderate scores, and 2.8% (n=59) had low scores. There 
was no significant association between community connection score and 
sex (Table 3). The proportion of students reporting high community 
connection scores was significantly different across school type, with a 
higher proportion of primary school students having high community 
connection scores compared to secondary or SEN school students 
(Table 4; p<0.001). Community connection score was also significantly 
associated with year group, with the highest prevalence of low or 
moderate community connection scores amongst students in years 
9/10/11 (Table 3; p<0.001). 
 

4.4.4 The sample mean score for community participation was 3.55 
(SD=1.42). Approximately half (53.0%; n=1,135) of all students had high 
scores, 24.6% (n=526) had moderate scores, and 22.4% (n=479) had 
low scores. There was no significant association between community 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

participation score and sex (Table 3). The proportion of students 
reporting high community participation scores was significantly different 
across school type, with a higher proportion of primary school students 
having high community participation scores compared to secondary or 
SEN school students (Table 3; p<0.001). Community participation score 
was also significantly associated with year group, with the highest 
prevalence of low or moderate community participation scores amongst 
students in years 7/8 and 9/10/11 (Table 3; p<0.001). 

 

4.4.5 School connection and participation 

The sample mean score for school connection was 4.03 (SD=0.89). The 
majority (71.7%; n=1,544) of students had high scores, 22.4% (n=483) 
had moderate scores, and 5.9% (n=127) had low scores. There was a 
significant association between sex and school connection score, with a 
higher proportion of males with low or moderate scores, compared to 
females (Table 4; p<0.05). The proportion of students reporting high 
school connection scores was significantly different across school type, 
with a higher proportion of primary and SEN school students reporting a 
high school connection scores compared to secondary school students 
(Table 4; p<0.001). School connection score was also significantly 
associated with year group, with the highest prevalence of low or 
moderate school connection amongst students in years 9/10/11 (Table 
4; p<0.001). 
 

4.4.6 The sample mean score for school participation was 2.75 (SD=1.02). 
Approximately half (48.6%; n=1,003) of students had moderate scores, 
34.0% (n=702) had low scores, and 17.4% (n=358) had high scores. 
There was no significant association between school participation score 
and sex (Table 4). School participation score was significantly different 
across school type, with a higher proportion of secondary school 
students having low school participation scores compared to primary or 
SEN school students (Table 4; p<0.001). School participation score was 
also significantly associated with year group, with an increase in 
prevalence of low school participation score among students in the older 
year groups (Table 4; p<0.001). 

 

4.4.7 Peer support at school 

The sample mean score for peer support at school was 3.92 (SD=0.86). 
Seven in ten (71.9%; n=1,530) students had high scores, 22.9% (n=487) 
had moderate scores, and 5.2% (n=110) had low scores. There was a 
significant association between sex and peer support score, with a 
higher proportion of males with low or moderate scores, compared to 
females (Table 4; p<0.001). Peer support score was significantly 
different across school type, with a higher proportion of SEN school 
students reporting low peer support scores compared to primary or 
secondary school students (Table 4; p<0.001). Peer support score was 
also significantly associated with year group, with the highest prevalence 
of low peer support scores amongst students in years 7/8 and years 
9/10/11 (Table 4; p<0.001). 

Page 20

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

Table 2: Individual sources of resilience by sex, year, and school type, student survey 

  SELF-ESTEEM SCORE EMPATHY SCORE 
PROBLEM SOLVING 

SCORE 
GOALS & ASPIRATIONS 

SCORE 
  Low Moderate High Low Moderate High Low Moderate High Low Moderate High 

SEX 

Male 3.9 24.3 71.8 7.1 28.5 64.4 11.2 29.9 59.0 6.5 24.4 69.2 

Female 6.1 28.1 65.8 3.9 18.8 77.3 9.8 30.8 59.3 7.9 26.1 66.0 

2   10.563   42.119   1.004   2.939 

p   <0.01   <0.001   NS   NS 

YEAR 

3 & 4 3.1 25.7 71.2 4.8 22.2 73.0 7.9 27.7 64.4 5.4 23.7 70.9 

5 & 6 3.0 20.0 77.0 3.4 18.9 77.7 8.7 26.8 64.5 4.2 23.0 72.8 

7 & 8 8.1 25.9 65.9 5.9 23.1 71.0 12.1 31.6 56.3 10.3 25.5 64.2 

9, 10 & 11 7.6 31.7 60.7 8.9 31.9 59.2 16.8 38.0 45.3 10.2 30.1 59.7 

2   38.698   35.117   52.098   30.638 

p   <0.001   <0.001   <0.001   <0.001 

SCHOOL 
TYPE 

Primary 3.1 24.4 72.5 4.4 21.6 74.0 8.0 27.5 64.5 5.2 23.5 71.3 

Secondary 7.2 28.6 64.2 6.7 26.8 66.5 14.2 35.6 50.2 9.7 27.5 62.8 

SEN 13.0 29.3 57.6 13.0 28.3 58.7 15.2 25.0 59.8 14.1 28.3 57.6 

2   37.715   25.496   45.794   29.644 

p   <0.001   <0.001   <0.001   <0.001 

 
Table 3: Family and community sources of resilience by sex, year, and school type, student survey 

  
FAMILY CONNECTION 

SCORE 
FAMILY PARTICIPATION 

SCORE 
COMMUNITY 

CONNECTION SCORE 
COMMUNITY 

PARTICIPATION SCORE 
  Low Moderate High Low Moderate High Low Moderate High Low Moderate High 

SEX 

Male 1.5 10.2 88.3 11.6 48.2 40.2 3.1 10.5 86.3 21.4 24.9 53.7 

Female 1.0 9.7 89.3 7.7 46.9 51.3 2.3 8.5 89.1 23.4 24.3 52.3 

2   1.449   11.412   3.959   1.265 

p   NS   <0.01   NS   NS 

YEAR 

3 & 4 0.6 9.6 89.9 8.9 45.3 45.7 1.5 9.6 88.9 17.4 26.5 56.0 

5 & 6 0.4 7.2 92.5 9.1 40.8 50.2 1.1 4.4 94.5 11.8 20.3 67.9 

7 & 8 1.9 8.2 89.9 9.7 49.9 40.4 3.5 8.7 87.8 30.1 24.1 45.8 

9, 10 & 11 2.8 15.4 81.9 12.6 55.0 32.5 6.0 14.4 79.6 32.5 23.2 44.3 

2   32.103   27.892   46.869   82.797 

p   <0.001   <0.001   <0.001   <0.001 

SCHOOL 
TYPE 

Primary 0.5 9.1 90.4 9.0 44.2 46.8 1.4 8.5 90.1 16.1 25.2 58.7 

Secondary 1.9 10.5 87.7 10.5 51.5 37.9 4.3 10.7 85.0 30.1 23.2 46.7 

SEN 5.4 19.6 75.0 14.1 58.7 27.2 7.6 15.2 77.2 41.3 28.3 30.4 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

2   32.746   24.692   30.778   81.629 

p   <0.001   <0.001   <0.001   <0.001 

 

Table 4: School and peer sources of resilience by sex, year, and school type, student survey. 

  SCHOOL CONNECTION SCORE 
SCHOOL PARTICIPATION 

SCORE 
PEER SUPPORT SCORE 

  Low Moderate High Low Moderate High Low Moderate High 

SEX 

Male 6.3 24.2 69.4 36.0 47.0 17.0 7.1 25.5 67.5 

Female 5.3 20.5 74.2 31.8 50.4 17.8 3.0 20.2 76.8 

2   6.027   4.078   29.744 

p   <0.05   NS   <0.001 

YEAR 

3 & 4 1.5 17.8 80.7 28.6 50.0 21.4 3.4 24.0 72.7 

5 & 6 2.5 13.0 84.5 33.6 47.5 18.9 2.2 16.8 81.0 

7 & 8 9.9 25.8 64.3 39.6 47.8 12.6 8.0 20.6 71.3 

9, 10 & 11 14.4 36.5 49.1 41.4 46.9 11.8 8.1 27.2 64.7 

2   206.826   41.734   39.820 

p   <0.001   <0.001   <0.001 

SCHOOL 
TYPE 

Primary 1.7 16.7 81.5 29.8 49.5 20.8 3.1 22.4 74.5 

Secondary 12.5 31.5 56.0 41.8 46.3 11.9 7.4 22.2 70.4 

SEN 6.5 22.8 70.7 27.5 56.0 16.5 13.0 35.9 51.1 

2   187.267   44.146   42.733 

p   <0.001   <0.001   <0.001 

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 5



 

 

 

4.5 Mental wellbeing 
We measured student mental wellbeing using the Stirling Children’s 
Wellbeing Scale (SCWBS) for primary school children and the Warwick-
Edinburgh Mental Wellbeing Scale (WEMWBS) for secondary school 
students. WEMWBS is a 14-item scale with five response categories 
(none of the time, rarely, some of the time, often, all of the time), summed 
to provide an overall score ranging from 14-70. Items are positively 
worded and cover both feeling and functioning aspects of mental 
wellbeing. Total scores were categorised into low (≤40), average (41-
58), and relatively good mental wellbeing (≥59). The SCWBS is a 
positively worded measure of emotional and psychological wellbeing in 
children aged 8-15 years and is based on the same constructs as 
WEMWBS, making it an age appropriate comparable measure. SCWBS 
is a 12-item scale with five response categories (never, not much of the 
time, some of the time, quite a lot of the time, all of the time), summed 
to provide an overall score ranging from 12-60. Total scores were 
categorised into low (≤37), moderate (38-49), and high (≥50). 

 
4.5.1 The mean score for secondary school students on WEMWBS was 48.12 

(SD=12.25). The mean score for primary school students on SCWBS 
was 45.85 (SD=9.01). Overall, almost half (48.3%; n=949) of students 
had moderate mental wellbeing scores, 31.6% (n=620) had high mental 
wellbeing scores, and 20.2% (n=396) had low mental wellbeing scores. 
There was a significant association between sex and mental wellbeing 
score, with a higher proportion of females reporting low scores, 
compared to males (Table 5; p<0.05). There was a significant 
association between year group and mental wellbeing score, with the 
highest prevalence of low mental wellbeing scores amongst students in 
years 7/8 and years 9/10/11 (Table 5; p<0.001). Mental wellbeing score 
also significantly differed across school type, with a higher proportion of 
SEN and secondary school students having low mental wellbeing scores 
compared to primary students (Table 5; p<0.001). 

 
Table 5: Mental wellbeing by sex, year, school type and area, student survey 

 
MENTAL WELLBEING SCORE 

Low (≤37) Moderate (38-49) High (≥50) 

SEX 

Male 17.5 50.1 32.3 
Female 23.0 46.3 30.7 

2   9.125 

p   <0.05 

YEAR 

3 & 4 17.1 45.0 37.8 
5 & 6 16.5 43.3 40.2 
7 & 8 21.8 53.9 24.3 

9, 10 & 11 29.0 54.3 16.7 

2   78.939 

p   <0.001 

SCHOOL 
TYPE 

Primary 17.0 44.7 38.4 
Secondary 25.2 53.8 21.0 

SEN 25.0 56.9 18.1 

2   70.435 

p   <0.001 

4.6 Associations between resilience and mental wellbeing 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

For all sources of resilience, there was a significant association between 
a student’s resilience score and their mental wellbeing score. This 
indicated a graded relationship, with the highest prevalence of low 
mental wellbeing scores amongst students with low resilience scores, 
and the lowest prevalence amongst those with high resilience scores 
(p<0.001; Figures 14-16; Appendix 3, Table 8). 

 
4.6.1 No individuals with high self-esteem scores had a low mental wellbeing 

score, whilst the majority of students with low self-esteem scores had a 
low mental wellbeing score (81.1%; Figure 1). Approximately half 
(53.8%; n=57) of the students with a low empathy score also had a low 
mental wellbeing score, whilst approximately two thirds of students with 
a low problem-solving score (62.7%; n=128) and goals and aspirations 
score (68.6%; n=94) had a low mental wellbeing score (Figure 1).  

 
Figure 1: Proportion of students with low mental wellbeing scores by individual resilience 
scores, student survey 

 

 
4.6.2 Approximately seven in ten students who had low family (69.6%; n=16) 

and community (75.5%; n=37) connection scores had a low mental 
wellbeing score, compared to approximately 16% of those with high 
family (16.8%; n=294) and community (16.1%; n=278) connection 
scores (Figure 2). Approximately half (54.4%; n=105) of the students 
with low family participation scores had a low mental wellbeing score 
compared to 8.4% (n=71) of those with high family participation scores 
(Figure 7). Approximately one third (35.8%; n=154) of the students with 
low community participation scores had a low mental wellbeing score 
compared to just 12.7% (n=133) of those with high community 
participation scores (Figure 2).  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 2: Proportion of students with low mental wellbeing scores by family and community 
resilience scores, student survey 
 

81.1

53.8
62.7 68.6

18.9
30.0 30.3 34.5

0.0 14.4
7.5

9.8
0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

Self esteem Empathy Problem solving Goals and aspirations

%

Low Moderate High

Page 24

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

 
4.6.3 Low mental wellbeing scores were also more prevalent amongst 

students with low school connection scores (61.0%; n=64) and peer 
support scores (68.8%; n=64) compared to those with high scores 
(school, 14.1%; n=200; peer, 11.1%; n=157) (Figure 3). Similarly, low 
mental wellbeing scores were higher amongst students with low school 
participation scores (36.4%; n=242) compared to those with high scores 
(5.4%; n=18; Figure 3). 

 
Figure 3: Proportion of students with low mental wellbeing scores by school and peer 
resilience scores, student survey 
 
 

 
  

69.6
54.4

75.5

35.8
44.3

23.7

43.1

22.416.8 8.4 16.1 12.7
0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

Family connection Family participation Community
connection

Community
participation

%

Low Moderate High

61.0

36.4

68.8

29.8
14.1

38.7

14.1 5.4 11.1
0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

School connection School participation Peer support

%

Low Moderate High

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

Summary: Student wellbeing and resilience survey 

• The student survey sample comprised 2,039 students aged 8-16 years attending 

primary (n=1,347), secondary (n=869), and SEN (n=93) schools in Sefton across 

a total of 29 schools. 

Resilience 

• A modified 38-item version of the SRS was used to measure students’ perceptions 

of their individual characteristics as well as protective factors in their environment 

from their family, school and community. 

• Students’ perceptions of their individual characteristics showed that female 

students were significantly more likely than male students to report low to moderate 

self-esteem scores, but female students were significantly more likely to report high 

empathy scores. There was no difference in scores for problem solving and goals 

and aspirations between female and male students. 

• School year and type had a significant association with scores for each of the four 

individual constructs (self-esteem, empathy, problem solving, and goals and 

aspirations). High scores on each construct were more prevalent amongst students 

in years 5 and 6 compared to other years, and among students in primary school 

compared to secondary and SEN schools.  

• There were no clear differences in scores between male and female students on 

the protective factors (family connection, family participation, community 

connection, community participation, school connection, school participation). 

However, female students were significantly more likely than male students to 

report high peer support scores. 

• School year and type were significantly associated with scores on each of the 

protective factors. With the exception of school participation, high scores on each 

construct were more prevalent among students in years 5 and 6 compared to other 

years, and among students in primary school compared to secondary and SEN 

schools. 

Mental wellbeing 

• Student mental wellbeing was measured using SCWBS for primary school children 

and the WEMWBS for secondary school students. 

• Female students were more likely than male students to report low or moderate 

mental wellbeing scores. 

• School year and type were significantly associated with student mental wellbeing 

scores. Low mental wellbeing scores were most prevalent amongst students in 

years 7 and 8, and years 9, 10 and 11, compared to other years, and among 

students in secondary and SEN schools compared to students in primary schools. 

• Resilience and mental wellbeing scores were significantly associated. The 

prevalence of low mental wellbeing scores was highest amongst those with low 

resilience scores on the individual characteristics and protective factors.  

Page 26

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

5 Staff wellbeing and resilience survey 
 

5.1 Sample characteristics 
A total of 312 staff participated in the survey across 24 schools, including 
16 primary schools, 5 secondary schools and three SEN schools. The 
staff who took part in the survey encompassed a number of different 
roles supporting the learning and welfare of students, but the majority 
(77.9%, n=243) were in teaching and learning support roles. This 
included staff in the following teaching and learning support roles1: 
teachers (n=116), department/year heads (n=32), heads and assistant 
heads (n=30), SEN coordinators (n=13) and teaching assistants (n=71). 
Staff sociodemographic data are presented in Table 6. 
 

Table 6: Staff sociodemographic data 
 

  % (n) 

Sex Male 17.6 (55) 
 Female 80.1 (250) 
 Missing/Prefer not to say 2.2 (7) 

Age group (years) 20-29 10.9 (34) 
 30-39 18.3 (57) 
 40-49 29.2 (91) 
 50-59 32.7 (102) 
 60+ 4.8 (15) 
 Missing/Prefer not to say 4.2 (13) 

School type Primary 49.0 (153) 
 Secondary 42.0 (131) 
 SEN 8.7 (27) 
 Missing 0.3 (1) 

Role Teaching and learning support 77.9 (243) 
 Pupil support and welfare 7.7 (24) 
 Administrative and management 7.1 (22) 
 Facilities (Caretakers, caterers, cleaners) 1.3 (4) 
 Specialist and technical 1.9 (6) 
 Missing/Prefer not to say 4.2 (13) 

School area Southport 30.1 (94) 

 Aintree/Litherland 8.0 (25) 

 Crosby/Waterloo 22.8 (71) 

 Maghull 17.9 (56) 

 Bootle 10.6 (33) 

 Formby 10.3 (32) 

 Missing 0.3 (1) 

Local authority of 
residence 

Sefton 84.9 (265) 

Liverpool 7.1 (22) 

Other/Missing 8.0 (25) 

  Mean (SD) 

Time in current school (years) 10.2 (7.4) 

Time in education sector (years) 15.0 (8.7) 

 
 

5.2 Resilience 

                                                 
1 Survey participants could select more than one role. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

We used the 12-item Resilience Research Centre Adult Resilience 
Measure (RRC-ARM) to measure staff resilience resources. Response 
options included: not at all, a little, somewhat, quite a bit, a lot. 
Responses on each item were dichotomised into positive (quite a bit, a 
lot) and negative responses (not at all, a little, somewhat) for each item. 
The majority of staff responded positively to most questions (Figure 4). 
Approximately four in ten staff gave negative responses to: I know where 
to get help in my community; I feel I belong in my community; and, 
Getting and improving qualifications or skills is important to me (Figure 
4).  
 

Figure 4: Proportions of staff responding positively and negatively to adult RRC-ARM 
questions, staff survey 

 
5.3 Similar to practice elsewhere [27], to provide an overall measure of 

resilience, a count was created of the number of items a participant 
responded positively to. The average number of positive items was 9.9. 
Participants were then grouped into three categories: low resilience 
resources (<7 positive items); moderate resilience resources (7-9 
positive items); and high resilience resources (10-12 positive items). 
Almost two thirds (64.5%; n=182) of staff who took part in the survey 
were classed as having high resilience resources, whilst almost three in 
ten (27.7%; n=78) had moderate resilience resources and 7.8% (n=22) 
had low resilience resources. There was no significant association 
between age or sex and level of resilience resources.  

5.4 Mental wellbeing 

11.2

10.4

19.9

10

6.6

38.4

41.5

0.7

8.3

13.1

40.5

9.0

88.8

89.6

80.1

90.0

93.4

61.6

58.5

99.3

91.7

86.9

59.5

91.0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

I enjoy my family's/partner's cultural and family
traditions

I have opportunities to apply my abilities in life

I am treated fairly in my community

My friends stand by me during difficult times

My family stand by me during difficult times

I feel I belong in my community

I know where to get help in my community

I can solve problems without harming myself or
others

I try to finish what I start

My family know a lot about me

Getting and improving qualifcations or skills is
important to me

I have people I can respect in my life

Negative Positive

Page 28

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

We measured staff mental wellbeing using WEMWBS. Approximately 
half of staff responded positively to most items (Figure 5). However, 
74.6% and 80.8% of staff responded negatively to items about feeling 
relaxed and having energy to spare (Figure 5).  
 

Figure 5: Proportions of staff responding positively and negatively to WEMWBS questions, 
staff survey 

 
5.5 The mean mental wellbeing score for staff was 48.51 (SD=9.26). This is 

lower than the mean wellbeing score for the English population based 
on norms for England developed from the Health Survey for England 
2011 (mean score = 51.61). Total scores were then categorised into low 
(≤40), moderate (41-58), and high (≥59). Approximately seven in ten 
(69.1%; n=197) staff had moderate mental wellbeing scores, one in ten 
(10.9%; n=31) had high scores, and 20.0% (n=57) had low scores. There 
was no significant association between age or sex and mental wellbeing 
score. There was a significant difference between school type and 
prevalence of low mental wellbeing scores amongst staff, with the lowest 
prevalence of low mental wellbeing scores amongst primary school staff 
(14.2%; n=20) compared to secondary (26.3%; n=31) and SEN school 
staff (24.0%; n=6; p<0.05). There was no significant association 
between mental wellbeing score and number of years working in current 
school or education sector. 

42.8

50.3

37.5

29.9

55.8

45.5

57.9

37.5

42.3

80.8

27.5

74.6

33.3

50.7

57.2

49.7

62.5

70.1

44.2

54.5

42.1

62.5

57.7

19.2

72.5

25.4

66.7

49.3

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

I've been feeling cheerful

I've been interested in new things

I've been feeling loved

I've been able to make up my own mind about
things

I've been feeling confident

I've been feeling close to other people

I've been feeling good about myself

I've been thinking clearly

I've been dealing with problems well

I've had energy to spare

I've been feeling interested in other people

I've been feeling relaxed

I've been feeling useful

I've been feeling optimistic about the future

Low High

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

 
5.6 Associations between resilience and mental wellbeing 

To examine the association between resilience and mental wellbeing, 
wellbeing scores were dichotomised into the presence (scores ≤40) or 
absence (scores 41-70) of low mental wellbeing. There were significant 
relationships between all individual resilience questions and low mental 
wellbeing except I can solve problems and the enjoyment of 
partner/family’s cultural and family traditions. All significant associations 
between individual resilience questions and low mental wellbeing, 
showed a decreased prevalence of low mental wellbeing for each item 
(Table 7).  
 

Table 7: Prevalence of low mental wellbeing by responses to adult RRC-ARM 
questions, staff survey 

 
 

Response 
% low mental 

wellbeing 
2 p 

I have people I can respect in my life 
Negative 60.0   
Positive 15.6 25.741 <0.001 

Getting and improving qualifications or 
skills is important to me 

Negative 28.9   
Positive 13.7 8.998 <0.01 

My family know a lot about me 
Negative 40.5   
Positive 16.7 10.000 <0.01 

I try to finish what I start 
Negative 22.2   
Positive 19.0 0.860 NS 

I can solve problems without harming 
myself or others 

Negative 50.0   
Positive 19.6 0.033 NS 

I know where to get help in my 
community 

Negative 32.5   
Positive 10.4 19.605 <0.001 

I feel I belong in my community 
Negative ;38.0   
Positive 8.6 34.231 <0.001 

My family stand by me during difficult 
times 

Negative 44.4   
Positive 18.3 5.695 <0.05 

My friends stand by me during difficult 
times 

Negative 39.3   
Positive 17.7 6.079 <0.05 

I am treated fairly in my community 
Negative 46.3   
Positive 13.7 26.914 <0.001 

I have opportunities to apply my 
abilities in life 

Negative 55.2   
Positive 15.8 22.917 <0.001 

I enjoy my family’s/partner’s cultural 
and family traditions 

Negative 28.1   

Positive 18.6 1.071 NS 

 
Note: negative = somewhat, a little, not at all; positive = quite a bit, a lot. 
 

5.6.1 There was a significant difference in the proportion of individuals who 
had a low mental wellbeing score across levels of resilience (using the 
overall measure of resilience). Two thirds (66.7%; n=14) of staff who 
had low levels of resilience had a low mental wellbeing score, 
compared to one third of staff with moderate levels of resilience 
(34.2%), and less than one in ten (7.9%) staff who had high levels of 
resilience (p<0.001; Figure 6). 

Figure 5: Proportion of staff with low, moderate and high mental wellbeing scores by 
resilience level, staff survey. 

Page 30

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

 

 
5.7 Staff satisfaction with school provision of wellbeing activities 

Individuals participating in the staff survey were asked to rate their 
satisfaction (1 = very unsatisfied; 10 = very satisfied) with the provision 
of resilience building or EHWB activities for staff and students in their 
school. The average satisfaction score for provision of staff activities was 
6.1 (SD=2.5) and for provision of student activities was 7.3 (SD=1.8) 
(Figure 7). Overall the majority of staff were satisfied (scores of >5) with 
both staff (78.8%; n=238) and student (62.6%; n=189) resilience building 
or EHWB activities in their school. There was a significant association 
between mental wellbeing and satisfaction with the provision of activities 
for staff, with 70.5% (n=160) of staff with average or relatively good 
mental wellbeing reporting being satisfied with activity provision, 
compared to 29.8% (n=17) of staff with low mental wellbeing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 7: Staff satisfaction with school provision of resilience building or EHWB activities for 

staff and students, staff survey. 
 

66.7

34.2

7.9

33.3

63.2
71.1

0.0 2.6
16.3

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

Low resilience Moderate resilience High resilience

%

Low wellbeing Moderate wellbeing High wellbeing

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

 

 
 

5.7.1 The majority (79.8%; n=241) of staff reported that they would be 
interested in wellbeing or support services for staff being offered at their 
school, whilst 15.6% (n=47) were unsure and 4.6% (n=14) were not 
interested. The mean satisfaction score with the provision of staff 
wellbeing activities was significantly lower amongst staff who reported 
they would be interested in activities being offered in the future (5.8) than 
amongst staff who were not interested (7.6) or were unsure (7.1; 
p<0.001). 

  

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Staff Students

M
ean

 satisfactio
n

 level

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

Very satisfied 

Very unsatisfied 

Page 32

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

Summary: Staff wellbeing and resilience survey 

• The staff survey sample comprised 312 members of staff working in primary 

(n=153), secondary (n=131), and SEN (n=27) schools in Sefton across a total of 

24 schools. Staff in a range of roles responded to the survey, although the majority 

(77.9%, n=244) were in teaching and learning support roles 

Resilience 

• The 12-item RRC-ARM was used to measure staff resilience resources. Almost 

two-thirds (65%) of staff had a high level of resilience resources. There was no 

significant association between age or sex and level of resilience resources. 

Mental wellbeing 

• WEMWBS was used to measure staff wellbeing. Four out of five (80%) staff had 

moderate or high mental wellbeing scores. There was no association between age 

or sex and mental wellbeing score. 

• School type had a significant association with mental wellbeing score. Low mental 

wellbeing scores was more prevalent amongst secondary school (26%) and SEN 

school (24%) staff compared to primary school staff (14%). 

• There were significant relationships between most of the individual resilience 

questions and mental wellbeing score. Two-thirds (67%) of staff who had low levels 

of resilience had a low mental wellbeing score. 

Staff satisfaction with school provision of wellbeing activities 

• Most staff were satisfied with both staff (79%) and student (63%) EHWB and 

resilience building activities in their school. There was a significant association 

between mental wellbeing and satisfaction with the provision of wellbeing activities 

for staff. Staff with average or relatively good mental wellbeing were more likely to 

report being satisfied with wellbeing activity provision in their school. 

 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
 
 6.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Note the key findings of the surveys. 
 
 
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 

Appendices 

Appendix A – Primary School Survey 

Section 1 
 

1. School name 2. Year 3. Age 4. Sex 
 

Section 2 
Please read every statement carefully and pick the answer that fits you best. 
 

At home, there is an adult who… Never 
Not much of 
the time 

Some of the 
Time 

Quite a lot 
of the time 

All of the 
Time 

1.  …is interested in my school work 1 2 3 4 5 
2.  …believes that I will be a success 1 2 3 4 5 
3.  …wants me to do my best 1 2 3 4 5 
4.  ...listens to me when I have something to say 1 2 3 4 5 

At school, there is an adult who… Never 
Not much of 
the time 

Some of the 
Time 

Quite a lot 
of the time 

All of the 
Time 

5.  …really cares about me 1 2 3 4 5 
6.  …tells me when I do a good job 1 2 3 4 5 
7.  …listens to me when I have something to say 1 2 3 4 5 
8.  ...believes that I will be a success 1 2 3 4 5 

Away from school, there is an adult who… Never 
Not much of 
the time 

Some of the 
Time 

Quite a lot 
of the time 

All of the 
Time 

9.  …really cares about me 1 2 3 4 5 
10.  …tells me when I do a good job 1 2 3 4 5 
11.  …believes that I will be a success 1 2 3 4 5 
12.  ...I trust 1 2 3 4 5 

Away from school… Never 
Not much of 
the time 

Some of the 
Time 

Quite a lot 
of the time 

All of the 
Time 

13.  …I am a member of a club, sports team, church group, or other group 1 2 3 4 5 
14.  …I take lessons in music, art, sports, or have a hobby 1 2 3 4 5 

Are there students at your school who would… Never 
Not much of 
the time 

Some of the 
Time 

Quite a lot 
of the time 

All of the 
Time 

15.  …explain the rules of a game if you didn’t understand them 1 2 3 4 5 
16.  …invite you to their home 1 2 3 4 5 
17.  ...share things with you 1 2 3 4 5 
18.  …help you if you hurt yourself 1 2 3 4 5 
19.  …miss you if you weren’t at school 1 2 3 4 5 

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

20.  …make you feel better if something is bothering you 1 2 3 4 5 
21.  …pick you for a partner 1 2 3 4 5 
22.  …help you if other students are being mean to you 1 2 3 4 5 
23.  …tell you you’re their friend 1 2 3 4 5 
24.  …ask you to join in when you are all alone 1 2 3 4 5 

Please read every statement carefully and click on the answer 
that fits you best 

Never 
Not much of 
the time 

Some of the 
Time 

Quite a lot 
of the time 

All of the 
Time 

25.  I do things at home that make a difference (i.e. make things better) 1 2 3 4 5 
26.  I help my family make decisions 1 2 3 4 5 
27.  At school, I decide things like class activities or rules 1 2 3 4 5 
28.  I do things at school that make a difference (i.e. make things better) 1 2 3 4 5 
29.  I can work out my problems 1 2 3 4 5 
30.  I can do most things if I try 1 2 3 4 5 
31.  There are many things that I do well 1 2 3 4 5 
32.  I feel bad when someone gets their feelings hurt 1 2 3 4 5 
33.  I try to understand what other people feel 1 2 3 4 5 
34.  When I need help, I find someone to talk to 1 2 3 4 5 
35.  I know where to go for help when I have  problem 1 2 3 4 5 
36.  I try to work out problems by talking about them 1 2 3 4 5 
37.  I have goals and plans for the future 1 2 3 4 5 
38.  I think I will be successful when I grow up 1 2 3 4 5 

 

  

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

Section 3 
 
Pick the box against each question that best describes your thoughts and feelings over the last two weeks. There are no right or wrong answers. 
 

Question Never 
Not much of the 
time 

Some of the 
Time 

Quite a lot of the 
time 

All of the Time 

39.  I think good things will happen in my life      
40.  I have always told the truth      
41.  I’ve been able to make choices easily      
42.  I can find lots of fun things to do      
43.  I feel that I am good at some things      
44.  I think lots of people care about me      
45.  I like everyone I have met      
46.  I think there are many things I can be proud of      
47.  I’ve been feeling calm      
48.  I’ve been in a good mood      
49.  I enjoy what each new day brings      
50.  I’ve been getting on well with people      
51.  I always share my sweets      
52.  I’ve been cheerful about things      
53.  I’ve been feeling relaxed      

 

  

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

Appendix B – Secondary School Survey 

 

Section 1 
 

1. School name 2. Year 3. Age 4. Sex 

 
Section 2 
Please read every statement carefully and pick the answer that fits you best. 
 

At home, there is an adult who… Never 
Not much of 
the time 

Some of the 
Time 

Quite a lot 
of the time 

All of the 
Time 

1.  …is interested in my school work 1 2 3 4 5 
2.  …believes that I will be a success 1 2 3 4 5 
3.  …wants me to do my best 1 2 3 4 5 
4.  ...listens to me when I have something to say 1 2 3 4 5 

At school, there is an adult who… Never 
Not much of 
the time 

Some of the 
Time 

Quite a lot 
of the time 

All of the 
Time 

5.  …really cares about me 1 2 3 4 5 
6.  …tells me when I do a good job 1 2 3 4 5 
7.  …listens to me when I have something to say 1 2 3 4 5 
8.  ...believes that I will be a success 1 2 3 4 5 

Away from school, there is an adult who… Never 
Not much of 
the time 

Some of the 
Time 

Quite a lot 
of the time 

All of the 
Time 

9.  …really cares about me 1 2 3 4 5 
10.  …tells me when I do a good job 1 2 3 4 5 
11.  …believes that I will be a success 1 2 3 4 5 
12.  ...I trust 1 2 3 4 5 

Away from school… Never 
Not much of 
the time 

Some of the 
Time 

Quite a lot 
of the time 

All of the 
Time 

13.  …I am a member of a club, sports team, church group, or other group 1 2 3 4 5 
14.  …I take lessons in music, art, sports, or have a hobby 1 2 3 4 5 

 
 
  

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

 

Are there students at your school who would… Never 
Not much of 
the time 

Some of the 
Time 

Quite a lot 
of the time 

All of the 
Time 

15.  …choose you on their team at school 1 2 3 4 5 
16.  …explain the rules of a game if you didn’t understand them      
17.  …invite you to their home      
18.  ...share things with you      
19.  …help you if you hurt yourself      
20.  …miss you if you weren’t at school      
21.  …make you feel better if something is bothering you      
22.  …pick you for a partner      
23.  …help you if other students are being mean to you      
24.  …tell you you’re their friend      
25.  …ask you to join in when you are all alone      
26.  …tell you secrets      

Please read every statement carefully and click on the answer 
that fits you best 

Never 
Not much of 
the time 

Some of the 
Time 

Quite a lot 
of the time 

All of the 
Time 

27.  I do things at home that make a difference (i.e. make things better) 1 2 3 4 5 
28.  I help my family make decisions 1 2 3 4 5 
29.  At school, I decide things like class activities or rules 1 2 3 4 5 
30.  I do things at school that make a difference (i.e. make things better) 1 2 3 4 5 
31.  I can work out my problems 1 2 3 4 5 
32.  I can do most things if I try 1 2 3 4 5 
33.  There are many things that I do well 1 2 3 4 5 
34.  I feel bad when someone gets their feelings hurt 1 2 3 4 5 
35.  I try to understand what other people feel 1 2 3 4 5 
36.  When I need help, I find someone to talk to 1 2 3 4 5 
37.  I know where to go for help when I have problem 1 2 3 4 5 
38.  I try to work out problems by talking about them 1 2 3 4 5 
39.  I have goals and plans for the future 1 2 3 4 5 
40.  I think I will be successful when I grow up 1 2 3 4 5 

 
 
 
 
  

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

Section 3 
 
Pick the box against each question that best describes your thoughts and feelings over the last two weeks. There are no right or wrong answers. 
 

Question Never 
Not much of the 
time 

Some of the 
Time 

Quite a lot of the 
time 

All of the Time 

54.  I think good things will happen in my life      
55.  I have always told the truth      
56.  I’ve been able to make choices easily      
57.  I can find lots of fun things to do      
58.  I feel that I am good at some things      
59.  I think lots of people care about me      
60.  I like everyone I have met      
61.  I think there are many things I can be proud of      
62.  I’ve been feeling calm      
63.  I’ve been in a good mood      
64.  I enjoy what each new day brings      
65.  I’ve been getting on well with people      
66.  I always share my sweets      
67.  I’ve been cheerful about things      
68.  I’ve been feeling relaxed      

 
  

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

Appendix C – School Staff Survey 

School Staff Survey 
Section 1 

 

1. School name 

2. Number of years working in current school 

3. Number of years working in education sector 

4. Role in school (tick as many as apply) 

a. Teacher 

b. Classroom assistant 

c. Lunchtime 

supervisors/playworker 

d. Head/assistant head teacher 

e. Head of year 

f. Department head 

g. Administration, business, 

accounts 

h. Learning Mentors 

i. Special education needs 

coordinator and Inclusion 

Specialists 

j. Technical staff 

k. Caretakers, caterers, cleaners 

l. School nurse 

m. Other(please specify)

5. Age 

6. Sex 

Section 2 

 

7. On a scale of 1-10, with 1 being very unsatisfied and 10 being very satisfied, how satisfied are you with the provision of resilience building 

or emotional health and mental wellbeing activities for students in your school? 

8. On a scale of 1-10, with 1 being very unsatisfied and 10 being very satisfied, how satisfied are you with the provision of wellbeing or 

support services for staff in your school? 

9. Would you be interested in wellbeing or support services for staff being offered in your school?  

  

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 5



Agenda Item 5 

 

 

Section 3 
 
Please tick the box that best describes your experience of each over the last 2 weeks. 

Statements 
None of the 
time 

Rarely 
Some of the 
Time 

Often All of the time 

1.  I’ve been feeling optimistic about the future      
2.  I’ve been feeling useful      
3.  I’ve been feeling relaxed      
4.  I’ve been feeling interested in other people      
5.  I’ve had energy to spare      
6.  I’ve been dealing with problems well      
7.  I’ve been thinking clearly      
8.  I’ve been feeling good about myself      
9.  I’ve been feeling close to other people      
10.  I’ve been feeling confident      
11.  I’ve been able to make up my own mind about things      
12.  I’ve been feeling loved      
13.  I’ve been interested in new things      
14.  I’ve been feeling cheerful      

 
Section 4 
 
To what extent do the sentences below describe you? Circle one answer for each statement. 

 Not at all A little Somewhat Quite a bit A lot 

15.  I have people I can respect in my life 1 2 3 4 5 
16.  Getting and improving qualifications or skills is important to me 1 2 3 4 5 
17.  My family know a lot about me 1 2 3 4 5 
18.  I try to finish what I start 1 2 3 4 5 

19.  
I can solve problems without harming myself or others (e.g. without 
using drugs or being violent) 

1 2 3 4 5 

20.  I know where to get help in my community 1 2 3 4 5 
21.  I feel I belong in my community 1 2 3 4 5 
22.  My family stands by me during difficult times 1 2 3 4 5 

23.  My friends stand by me during difficult times 1 2 3 4 5 
24.  I am treated fairly in my community 1 2 3 4 5 
25.  I have opportunities to show others that I can act responsibly 1 2 3 4 5 
26.  I enjoy my family’s/partner’s cultural and family traditions 1 2 3 4 5 

 
 

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: Friday 13th September 2019 
 
Title: Update Report – Children and Young People’s Plan  
 
Report of:  Gill Cowley, Strategic Support Team 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To receive information with regard to the consultation plans being 

developed for the Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) 
 
 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is 

to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
 
3. Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP)_ 
 
 3.1 Following the review of the proposed engagement activity around the 

Sefton Children and Young Peoples plan for 2020 – 2025, please see 
enclosed the proposed engagement material that will be sent to identified 
youth groups, schools, and community groups as per the report to the 
committee in July 2019. 

 
 

4.    The Consultation 

 
 4.1 We are intending to write to identified youth groups, schools and 

community groups with two questions as contained within the letter 
attached.  These are 1) Do you think the priorities are the right ones, and 
2) Do you think we have missed anything, if so what?   

 
4,2 We are also offering to attend groups or meetings that are already 

scheduled in order to talk more about what matters most to our children 
and young people. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

5. Recommendations 
 
 
 5.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the 

Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) 
 
  b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above consultation. 
 

Page 44

Agenda Item 6



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 

 
 

Children Schools and Families 
Vicky Buchanan 

Interim Director of Children’s Social Care and Education 
Sefton Council 

Bootle Town Hall 
Oriel Road 

Bootle 
L20 7AE 

 
       0151 934 3128 

  vicky.buchanan@sefton.gov.uk 
 
Date:  
 
Dear Colleague,  
RE: Children and Young Peoples Plan 2020 – 2025  

We are currently reviewing and rewriting the Children’s and Young Peoples plan 
for Sefton. Which will set out our priorities and the outcomes we want for our 
Children and Young People for 2020 – 2025.  

We have reviewed the priorities in the old plan and are keeping the ones that are 
still valid and thinking about the new ones we need. We are grouping these under; 
Happy Healthy, Achieving and Heard.  

We are using information that we already hold such as the JSNA, the Health and 
Well being Strategy consultation, information on consultations that have already 
taken place such as the 2030 Vision Imagine Sefton, consultations that local 
Groups may have undertaken, other work being undertaken by Public Health and 
Acute Health sector. If you have any consultation results that you think would be 
relevant to us please send these to ………………….. 

Please see enclosed a copy of the initial draft plan which we would love to hear 
your comments in particular on.  

1. Do you think the priorities are the right ones? 

2. Do you think we have missed anything, if so what? 

If you have a group or meeting that you would like us to attend please let us know 
and we would be delighted to come and talk more about what matters most to our 
Children and Young People.   

We will be incorporating the priorities of the SEND improvement work and the 
Children and Young Peoples parts of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  

Yours Sincerely  

 

Vicky Buchanan  
 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7 

Page 1 of 7 
 

 

     Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: Friday 13th September 2019  
 
Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity – 

Southport Market   
 
Report of:  Mark Catherall, Tourism Manager 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 

1.1 To receive information with regards to the consultation plans being 
developed with regards to Southport Market. 
 

2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is 

to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
3. Southport Market  
 
 3.1 The Market Hall underwent extensive refurbishment in 2012 with the aim 

of creating a modern multi goods indoor market. However, due to many 
internal and external factors the market has struggled to meet business 
plan expectations with occupancy rates never reaching the targeted 90% 
and more recently has fallen below 50%. 

 
 3.2 As one of the council’s key priorities in its Growth Programme it is 

proposed to look at a number of options for Southport Market including 
an increased food and drink offer in order to secure the long-term 
viability of the asset. 

 
 3.3  Development of the asset will act as a catalyst for regeneration of the 

Market Quarter and the town centre and enable the Market to continue to 
act as a key destination as part of the town’s visitor economy. 

 
 3.4 The business case required the consideration of different operating 

models and as result the current draft proposals have been accepted as 
the most appropriate basis for taking the Market forward in a sustainable 
manner.  This operating model calls for a change from a traditional mixed 
goods market to introducing more hot food and with a large events space 
to the rear, which would allow for multi-functional uses.  

 
 3.5 Ongoing discussions are taking place with the existing stall holders as 

the new business model is continually develops. This is to keep them up 
to date with proposals and establish if they wish to continue trading in the 

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



                                                              Agenda Item 7 

Page 2 of 7 
 

market within the proposed new business model.  
 
 3.6 There is now a need to engage with potential new traders, Sefton 

residents and visitors to hear their views on the proposals and keep them 
informed as proposed changes progress.  

 
 3.7 In 2016 extensive consultation took place on the Southport Development 

Framework, which identified specific development proposals along with 
support for regeneration priorities for the area and to help guide the 
future of the council’s current property and land holdings in the town. The 
Framework identified at that time that the Market Hall had ‘potential to 

  significantly develop and diversify its offer’. 
  
4.    The Consultation 
 
 4.1 The exisiting market traders have already been made aware of potential 

changes for the Market. This has involved individual meetings, direct 
written communication and questionnaire seeking their views on the 
proposed new operating model for the Market. Both of these 
communications provided an opportunity for traders to have further 
conversations/receive more information if requested.  

 
 4.2 An on-line survey has been produced with the intention to inform and 

engage with current traders, potential future traders, Sefton residents 
and visitors to the town. This will be hosted on the consultation Hub, with 
it being publicised via all available on-line channels and a press release. 
This online survey will run for 4 weeks and the results of which will be 
used to inform the final operating model. 

 
 
5. Legal Department Comments 
 
 5.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report and has no comments to make. 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
 6.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for 

Southport Market.  
 
  b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above consultation. 
 

Page 48

Agenda Item 7



Agenda Item 8 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 

 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR USE 
 
Each box contains a form field for you to type in text or select an option by clicking it with 
your mouse.  Some of the boxes show information to help you complete the field when 
you place the cursor on the “click here …” field. 
 
When you have completed the form, save it as a Word document. 

 

Project Title: Southport Market 

Is your project linked to: (please choose from the drop-down below) 

Choose an item. 

Lead officer: Mark Catherall Contact 
no  

0151 934 2315 

Designation Tourism Manager E-mail Mark.catherall@sefton.gov.uk 

How does your consultation relate to the Council’s Core Purpose (please tick) 

 Protect the most vulnerable 

 Facilitate confident and resilient communities 

 Commission, broker and provide core services 

x Place – Leadership and Influencer 

x Drivers of change and reform 

x Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity 

 Greater income for social investment 

 Cleaner, Greener 

Which of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Priorities does your Consultation relate 
to (please tick) 

 
Ensure all children have a positive start in life  
 

 
Support people early to prevent and treat avoidable illnesses and reduce 
inequalities in health  
 

 
Support older people and those with long term conditions and disabilities to 
remain independent and in their own homes  

 
Promote positive mental health and wellbeing  
 

 
Seek to address the wider social, environmental and economic issues that 
contribute to poor health and wellbeing  

Public Engagement & Consultation Panel 

PROJECT PROPOSAL 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



                                                              Agenda Item 7 

Page 4 of 7 
 



 
Build capacity and resilience to empower and strengthen communities 

Does this consultation relate to an item on the Forward Plan?  If so which one? 

Yes – Southport Market 

Other partners involved (please state if internal or external to the Council) 

Dawnvale Architects - external  

Liverpool Combined Authority  

 

(Planned) start 
date 

(Planned) end 
date: 

What is the allocated budget? 

16/09/19 14/10/19 Internal staff resource 

Background/Rationale 

 
 
Sefton council propose a new operating model and associated fit-out for Southport market 
and want the views of existing traders, residents and visitors to help inform this piece of 
work. 
 
 
 
 

Aims & Objectives 

To seek stakeholder views and inform the proposed operational changes at Southport 
Market. 

 

Target Audience 

Sefton residents, visitors, local business  

 

Methodology (Please also include any details of any accessible methods) 

E-consult survey 

Existing market trader’s questionnaire 

 

 

Communications Plan (If Council, please also contact Corporate Communications) 

Page 50

Agenda Item 7



                                                              Agenda Item 7 

Page 5 of 7 
 

Chris Owen in Corporate Communications is part of the project team.  

 

Key Message Audience Method 

Looking at a number of 
options how we revitalise 
and build on the previous 
investment in the market, 
potential options will look at 
introducing more hot food 
and drink supported by a 
flexible market and events 
space.  If implemented this 
will create a new attraction 
in Southport that will 
contribute to the overall 
mass of attractions.  The 
market will be pivotal in 
driving forward the 
regeneration of the market 
quarter including a number 
of vacant units. 

Officers, councillors, public, 
FOI response  

 

   
 

Potential barriers to involvement and action to overcome barriers 

No on-line access - printed versions of the survey to be made available in suitable local 
locations 

Not reaching target audience – engage Business improvement District (BID) to actively 
promote on-line survey through their communication channels. 

 

How will you protect the confidentiality of participants?  

GDPR regulations will be followed as per council procedure.  

 

How and when do you intend to report or publish the findings? 

Will be published as part cabinet reporting on implementing the new business model. 

Level and type of patient/public engagement (place a tick in all that apply) 

Tick Level Description 

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



                                                              Agenda Item 7 

Page 6 of 7 
 

x Informing 
Giving people information about something (a limited opportunity 
for them to be involved) 

x Consulting 
Getting people’s views to help you develop/change your 
services/plans 

 
Deciding 
together 

Making decisions using patients’ and public’s views 

 Acting together 
Local people will be involved in making decisions and reviewing 
your plans/services 

 
Supporting local 
initiatives 

Local people will have the opportunity to lead, develop and 
deliver activities independently 

Does your project include: 

 Yes/No If No please explain 

Questionnaire 
(Please attach .  The Panel will 
not be able to consider your 
proposal if it is not available 
in advance for them to 
consider) 

Yes  

Other materials  
(i.e. promotional materials) 

Yes https://www.southportmarket.com/  

A stakeholder map 
(a tool to help you identify your 
target audience – included in 
toolkit) 

Yes  

Reference to existing data or 
information that has already 
been completed  
(i.e. recent consultation/ 
research where results can be 
used to inform your 
consultation) 

yes Southport Development Framework  

https://www.sefton.gov.uk/your-council/plans-
policies/sefton-economy/southport-
development-framework.aspx  

Any other information you would like to provide? 

Click here to enter text. 

 

If you require further information please contact either Jayne Vincent on 0151 934 3733 

 
 

Page 52

Agenda Item 7

https://www.southportmarket.com/
https://www.sefton.gov.uk/your-council/plans-policies/sefton-economy/southport-development-framework.aspx
https://www.sefton.gov.uk/your-council/plans-policies/sefton-economy/southport-development-framework.aspx
https://www.sefton.gov.uk/your-council/plans-policies/sefton-economy/southport-development-framework.aspx


                                                              Agenda Item 7 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 
 
 
Signature of Project Lead:  Date: 28.08.19 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Manager Approval:         Date: 29.8.19 
 
 

 
Please return this form electronically to:- 
 
Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 53

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                               Agenda Item 7 

 

Southport Market Questionnaire 

Sefton Council remains committed to ensuring Southport Market continues to operate and 

make a positive contribution to the local economy as well as becoming a key visitor 

destination.  

We are seeking the views of our existing traders, residents and visitors to the area on the 

vision for the renewed market space.  

Below are images of what the new market could look like.  

 

 

 

Please visit the website to see more images and details on what the new operation could look 

like: https://southportmarket.com/  

Page 55

Agenda Item 7

https://southportmarket.com/


 

                                                               Agenda Item 7 

 

 

Your views matter to us, so please answer this short questionnaire:  

 

 
1. Are you aware of the proposal for the Market to potentially deliver: 

 
• Enhanced hot food and drink offer   
 

➢ Yes 
➢ No 

 
• Independent food retail units 
 

➢ Yes 
➢ No 

 
• Flexible market and events space 
 

➢ Yes 
➢ No 

 
➢ Comments:  

 
If yes, where did you hear about the proposals? 
 
 

2. How often have you visited Southport Market in the past 12 months?  
 

➢ More than once a week 
➢ Once a week 
➢ Twice a month 
➢ Once a month  
➢ Only a few times 
➢ Never 

 
 

➢ Comments: 
 
 

3. What effect do you think introducing more food and drink options will have on 
the Market? 

 
➢ Positive 
➢ Negative 
➢ No Change  

 
➢ Comments: 

Page 56

Agenda Item 7



 

                                                               Agenda Item 7 

 

 
  

4. What effect do you think developing the market into a food and drink market 
will have on the area/town centre/borough? 

 
➢ Positive 
➢ Negative 
➢ No change 

 
➢ Comments 

 
 

5. What would you like to see in a redeveloped Market? 
 
 
 
 

6. What kind of food stalls would you like to see?  
(For example, fresh pizza, burgers, fish and chips, vegan food, international 
cuisine) 
 
 

 
 

7. What type of drinks would you like there to be on offer? 
(For example, craft or local beers, cocktail bar, smoothies, coffee) 
 
 
 

8. Would you buy from a deli/butchers/greengrocers that focused on local or 
specialist produce? 
 

➢ Yes 
➢ No 

 
➢ Comments 

 
  

9. What other retail/uses options would you like to see in a new market? 
 
 

 
10. It is proposed that the back of the market is turned into a flexible events 

space for indoor markets and other events. 
 
Would you visit an: 

➢ Artisan and local food market 
➢ Antiques fair 
➢ Craft market 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



 

                                                               Agenda Item 7 

 

➢ Comedy night 
➢ Film screening 
➢ Yoga/Pilates/fittness session 
➢ Parent and baby events 
➢ Other – please state 

 
 

11. Would you consider hiring the space for your own function (party/wedding)? 
 

➢ Yes 
➢ No  

 
➢ Comments:  

 
12. Any other comments you would like to make on the proposals 

 
 
 
 

GDPR & Equalities questions – mandatory  
 

 

 

Page 58

Agenda Item 7



Agenda Item 8 

Page 1 of 11 
 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: Friday 13th September 2019 
 
Title:           Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity –  
                     Conservation Area Appraisals & Management Plans in respect of  
                     Green Lane (Formby) and Hesketh Road (Southport)  
                     Conservation Areas.  
 
 
Report of:  Paul Crowther 0345 140 0845 (option 4) Paul.Crowther@sefton.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To receive information relating to the consultation plans being developed 

in respect of Conservation Area Appraisals & Management Plans 
 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is 

to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
3. Conservation Area Appraisal & Management Plans 
 

3.1      Since the 1967 Civic Amenities Act local authorities have been 
empowered to designate Conservation Areas. The current Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act of 1990 defines 
Conservation Areas as: -"areas of special architectural or historic interest 
the character or appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or 
enhance".  

 
3.2      Local Authorities have a duty to review, from time to time, their areas to 

ensure that places of special architectural or historic interest are being 
protected. The boundaries of existing Conservation Areas may be 
revised, new areas may be designated and those areas which have 
been eroded to the extent that their special character has been lost, may 
be de-designated.  

 
3.3      Under section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 

Areas) Act 1990, the Council has a legal obligation to ensure that 
"special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance" of the area when deciding 
planning applications.  

 
 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Paul.Crowther@sefton.gov.uk


Agenda Item 8 

Page 2 of 11 
 

3.4      The first step to protecting the inherent qualities of a Conservation Area 
is having a thorough understanding of its character. This should then 
underpin local policies for the area’s protection. Such a definition 
requires a thorough appraisal of the area to assess the contribution of 
each element (e.g. buildings, boundaries, trees, surfaces, etc.) to the 
area’s overall character.  

 
4.    The Consultation 
 
        4.1      In summary the following methods will be used:  

• The documents will be made available on website  

• Newspaper Advert highlighting the consultation  

• Copy available to view in Planning Offices and main/local libraries.  

• Your Sefton Your Say Consultation Hub 

• A note on the Council’s Twitter page  

• A dedicated date for a public meeting/event will be held  

• Those who wish to can make an appointment within the consultation 
period to meet a Conservation Officer to discuss further if required.  

 
5. Legal Department Comments 
 
 5.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report and has no comments to make. 
  
6. Recommendations 
 
 6.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  

a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the Green 
Lane (Formby) and Hesketh Road (Southport) Conservation area 
appraisals/Management Plans  

 
b) Agree that the consultation process contained in the report will form 

the basis of consultation for the Green Lane (Formby) and Hesketh 
Road (Southport) Conservation Area Appraisals/Management Plans. 

 
c)  Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above consultation. 

Page 60

Agenda Item 8

https://yourseftonyoursay.sefton.gov.uk/


 

Page 3 of 11 
 

 

 

 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR USE 
 
Each box contains a form field for you to type in text or select an option by clicking it with 
your mouse.  Some of the boxes show information to help you complete the field when 
you place the cursor on the “click here …” field. 
 
When you have completed the form, save it as a Word document. 

 

Project Title: Green Lane, Formby and Hesketh Road Southport Conservation 
Area Consultation  

Is your project linked to: (please choose from the drop-down below) 

A new service - please attach a new Equalitiess Impact Assessment 

Lead officer: Paul Crowther Contact 
no  

0151 934 3155 

Designation Townscape Heritage 
Project Officer 

E-mail Paul.Crowther@Sefton.gov.uk 

How does your consultation relate to the Council’s Core Purpose (please tick) 

✓ The Economy 

✓ Health and Wellbeing 

✓ Resilient Communities 

✓ The Environment 

 The Most Vulnerable 

 Reshaping the Council  

Which of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Priorities does your Consultation relate 
to (please tick) 

 
Ensure all children have a positive start in life  
 

 
Support people early to prevent and treat avoidable illnesses and reduce 
inequalities in health  
 

 
Support older people and those with long term conditions and disabilities to 
remain independent and in their own homes  

 
Promote positive mental health and wellbeing  
 

✓ 
Seek to address the wider social, environmental and economic issues that 
contribute to poor health and wellbeing  

Public Engagement & Consultation Panel 

PROJECT PROPOSAL 

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 

Page 4 of 11 
 



✓ 
Build capacity and resilience to empower and strengthen communities 

Does this consultation relate to an item on the Forward Plan?  If so which one? 

No 

Other partners involved (please state if internal or external to the Council) 

Formby Civic Society (External)  

 

(Planned) start 
date 

(Planned) end 
date: 

What is the allocated budget? 

2019/20 2020/21 Within Planning Service Budget 

Background/Rationale 

 
Legislative Background  
 
Since the 1967 Civic Amenities Act local authorities have been empowered to designate 
Conservation Areas. The current Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
of 1990 defines Conservation Areas as:-  
"areas of special architectural or historic interest the character or appearance of which it 
is desirable to preserve or enhance".  
 
Such areas are diverse. They may be large or small; residential or commercial; civic or 
industrial; old or relatively modern. They may represent social ideals or civic pride. They 
may be specifically designed or speculatively produced; modest or grand. They may 
contain Listed Buildings of architectural or historic interest or may simply have local 
historic association. However, common to all will be an identifiable environmental quality 
which should be protected from unsympathetic redevelopment or alteration.  
 
Sefton Council has declared 25 Conservation Areas throughout the Borough reflecting 
the variety of building styles and environments within its borders. The Council has 14 
Conservation Areas with adopted appraisals and 2 with Management Plans. 
 

 Policy Framework 
 
The content of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 Is 
supported by the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Historic England 'Good 
Practice Guide'. The principles within the NPPF and the 'Good Practice Guidance' are 
further supported by Sefton Council’s Heritage policies contained within Its Local Plan. 
 
Local Authorities have a duty to review from time to time, their areas to ensure that places 
of special architectural or historic Interest are being protected. The boundaries of existing 
Conservation Areas may be revised, new areas may be designated and those areas which 
have been eroded to the extent that special character has been lost, may be de-
designated. 

Page 62

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 

Page 5 of 11 
 

 
Under section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 the 
Council has a legal obligation to ensure that "special attention shall be paid to the 
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance" of the area when 
deciding planning applications. 
 
The first step to protecting the inherent qualities of a Conservation Area Is having a 
thorough understanding of its character. This should then underpin local policies for the 
areas protection. Such a definition requires a thorough appraisal of the area to assess the 
contribution of each element (e.g. buildings, boundaries, trees, surfaces etc) to the areas 
overall character. 
 
 

Aims & Objectives 

 
Public engagement is necessary as part of the process and also to raise awareness of 
Conservation issues. The production of appraisals and the management plans of 
conservation areas directly affect those who live in the area and the public engagement 
is necessary to provide an opportunity to explain the Councils objectives and to give the 
residents and interested groups a chance to respond and tell us their views.  

 

Target Audience 

 

Our target audience is primarily residents and businesses within and adjacent the 
Conservation Area, local history groups and civic societies, although anyone is free to 
comment. 

Methodology (Please also include any details of any accessible methods) 

  

We will follow the same process with each Appraisal and Management Plan. In the first 
instance, we will write to residents/business owners of the Conservation Area affected by 
any boundary changes explaining that a draft appraisal/management plan is being 
produced, including plans showing any proposed changes. In addition to these letters, 
advertisements will be made in the free local paper giving full details of the consultation. 
We will advertise in local libraries and on the SMBC website that consultation will be taking 
place. Copies of the draft appraisal/management plans will be available from local libraries, 
planning offices and the webpage. (Each Conservation Area has its own webpage).  
 
We will hold a consultation meeting/event at a local venue or library, Conservation officers 
will be present, a technical member of staff may also attend to help record comments. We 
will use a free-standing display to exhibit plans and historical information and explain the 
relevant issues to attendees. Where high turnout may be expected, in order to avoid 
disappointment individual appointments will also be made available so that everyone 
attending will have the chance to ask questions and speak to an officer. The consultation 

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 

Page 6 of 11 
 

process will last approximately 6 weeks and during this time anyone can write in, email or 
phone to pass on their comments.  
 
At the end of the process, the final document will be produced using, or taking into account 
any relevant comments we have received. The final document will be produced and along 
with any prospective boundary changes will go to Cabinet Member Planning & Building 
control for approval.  
 
For some areas, it is possible that civic societies or history groups help us write the 
appraisals by contributing or carrying out studies and gathering information on what they 
think are the important elements in their area.  
 
In summary the following methods will be used:  

 The documents will be made available on the Councils website  
 Newspaper Advert indicating the duration of consultation and public meeting/event  
 Copies available to view in Planning Offices and main/local libraries.  
 Your Sefton Your Say Consultation Hub 
 A note on the Council’s Twitter page  
 A dedicated date for a public meeting/event will be held  
 Those who wish to can make a further appointment within the consultation period to 

meet a Conservation Officer to discuss further if required. 
  

Communications Plan (If Council, please also contact Corporate Communications) 

The consultation will be advertised by an advert in the Local Paper and details of the 
consultation and letters sent to relevant stakeholders, in addition the consultation will be 
published on Sefton Council’s website  

 

Key Message Audience Method 

Contents of the 
Conservation area 
Appraisals and 
Management Plan 

Residents and businesses 
within and adjacent the 
Conservation Area, local 
civic societies and those 
with interest/ 

SMBC Website, Newspaper 
advert, Twitter, letters to 
residents. 

Potential Boundary 
Changes of Conservation 
Areas 

Residents and businesses 
within and adjacent the 
Conservation Area, local 
civic societies and those 
with interest/ 

SMBC Website, Newspaper 
advert, Twitter, letters to 
residents. 

 

Potential barriers to involvement and action to overcome barriers 

 

Distance - we always use a local venue when available.  
 
Time - we hold event between 5-7pm so that working people will have a chance to attend.  

Page 64

Agenda Item 8

https://yourseftonyoursay.sefton.gov.uk/


Agenda Item 8 

Page 7 of 11 
 

Access to documents - we recognise that not everyone uses the internet and so will place hard 
copies in the reference section of the local library and in the planning offices.  

 

How will you protect the confidentiality of participants?  

We do not ascribe comments to individuals or name them.  

 

How and when do you intend to report or publish the findings? 

 

We use the SMBC website to thank everyone who attended and for their comments in a 
general way and publish the final document. We produce a schedule of amendments which is 
available as an appendix to the final document and write to anyone who is affected by any 
boundary amendments.  

 

Level and type of patient/public engagement (place a tick in all that apply) 

Tick Level Description 

✓ Informing 
Giving people information about something (a limited opportunity 
for them to be involved) 

✓ Consulting 
Getting people’s views to help you develop/change your 
services/plans 

 
Deciding 
together 

Making decisions using patients’ and public’s views 

 Acting together 
Local people will be involved in making decisions and reviewing 
your plans/services 

 
Supporting local 
initiatives 

Local people will have the opportunity to lead, develop and 
deliver activities independently 

Does your project include: 

 Yes/No If No please explain 

Questionnaire 
(Please attach .  The Panel 
will not be able to consider 
your proposal if it is not 
available in advance for 
them to consider) 

No The document is a large-scale planning 
document of analysis and factual information; 
comments are invited on all aspects. The only 
potential direct questions to ask would be 
choice of venue etc. on the actual consultation 
rather than the document itself. 

Page 65

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 

Page 8 of 11 
 

Other materials  
(i.e. promotional materials) 

Yes  

A stakeholder map 
(a tool to help you identify your 
target audience – included in 
toolkit) 

Yes  

Reference to existing data or 
information that has already 
been completed  
(i.e. recent consultation/ 
research where results can be 
used to inform your 
consultation) 

yes . 

Any other information you would like to provide? 

Click here to enter text. 

 

 

 

If you require further information please contact either Jayne Vincent on 0151 934 3733 

 
 
Signature of Project Lead: Paul Crowther Date: 23rd August 
2019 
 

Manager Approval:  Date:23rd August 
2019 
 
 

 
Please return this form electronically to:- 
 
Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk


Agenda Item 8 

Page 9 of 11 
 

 

1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Equality Act 2010 outlines how public bodies must have due regard to: 
 

1. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under this act 

2. Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 

3. Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 

2.0 Protected Characteristics 
 
2.1 Equality Act 2010 is clear that there are particular characteristics that are 
intrinsic to an individual against which it would be easy to discriminate. Section 
149 (the Public Sector Equality Duty) lists the characteristics known as ‘protected 
characteristics’ against which we have to test for discrimination. These 
characteristics are gender, race/ethnicity, religion and belief, sexual orientation, 
age, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity and disability. 
 
 

3.0 Identifying Impacts across protected characteristics 
 
Through reviewing your proposal, identify if and how the protected groups below 
may be impacted and identify any mitigating actions regarding the proposed 
changes but also as part of the consultation and engagement activity. 

 

Protected 
characteristic 

Recommendations/mitigating actions  

Gender 
 
 

There is no direct negative impact based on gender. 
 
The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group.  
 

 

Age 
 
 

There is no direct negative impact based on age. 
 
The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group.  
 
Any perceived age-related negative impact would be as a result of 
time of the public workshop and age related disability/infirmity 
compromising the ability to access the consultation venue. 
 
Distance - we always use a fully accessible public local venue 
when available.  
 
Time - we hold event between 5-7pm so that working people 
will have a chance to attend.  
 

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 

Page 10 of 11 
 

Access to document - we recognise that not everyone uses the 
internet and so will place hard copies in the reference section of 
the closest local library and in the planning offices.  
 

 

Disability 
 
 

There is no direct negative impact based on disability. 
 
The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group.  
 
People with disabilities and health conditions, including but not 
limited to people with reduced mobility; Blind and visually 
impaired people. 
 
We will ensure that a suitable venue for the workshop/event is 
fully accessible. 
 
Distance - we always use a local venue when available.  
 
Time - we hold event between 5-7pm so that working people will 
have a chance to attend.  
 
Access to document - we recognise that not everyone uses the 
internet and so will place hard copies in the reference section of 
the local library (Formby) and in the planning offices. 
 
The hard copies of documentation will be available to all on 
request. It will also be available in a large print format and an 
“easy-read” format if required.  
 
The information could also be available in audio and feedback 
can be given over the telephone, if required. 

 
 

Race/Ethnicity  
 

There is no direct negative impact based on race/ethnicity. 
 
The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group.  
 
Language translations will be provided on request.  
 

 

Religion or 
belief  

There is no direct negative impact based on religion or belief. 
 
The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group.  
 
We will ensure that the public workshop/event is not scheduled for 
any religious festivals taking place nor holy days. 
 

Sexual 
Orientation 

There is no direct negative impact based on sexual orientation. 
 

Page 68

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 

Page 11 of 11 
 

The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group.  
 

Gender 
Reassignment  

There is no direct negative impact based on gender 
reassignment. 
 
The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group.  
 

Pregnancy and 
maternity  

There is no direct negative impact based on pregnancy and 
maternity. 
 
The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group.  
  
The local workshop/event venue will be chosen that is fully 
accessible and compliant with pregnancy related issues and also 
be located in an accessible public building with provision for 
prams or pushchairs. 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9 

Page | 1 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: Friday 13th September 2019 
 
Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity 

– Council Tax – Empty Homes Discounts Consultation  
 
Report of:  Mark Barry, Revenues & AP Service Manager  
 T: 0151 934 4361 E: mark.barry@sefton.gov.uk  
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To receive information with regard to the consultation plans being 

developed with regard to the Council Tax empty homes discounts 
consultation. 

 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 

is to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
3. Council Tax Empty Homes Discounts Consultation 
 
 3.1 Since 1 April 2013, the Government has provided Councils in England 

with the flexibility to provide certain Council Tax discounts relating to 
empty homes. Decisions on whether or not to offer local empty homes 
discounts remain a matter for local councils. Where a discount is 
offered the level of discount and the length of time it can be offered for 
are subject to certain statutory restrictions. 

 
3.2 A review of the level of council tax discounts offered in neighbouring 

authorities indicates that Sefton is currently offering the most generous 
local empty homes discounts in the city region. The proposed changes 
are in respect of two discounts. The current levels are:- 

 

• Empty Property Discount of 100% for a period of one month  

• Uninhabitable Property Discount of 50% for a maximum period of 
12 months   

  
 The proposals being consulted on are:- 
 

• To reduce the Empty Property Discount to 50% for one month 

• To remove the Uninhabitable Discount  
 
3.3 The proposal to change the discounts to offer a lower level of support 

would incentivise owners of empty homes to bring them back in to use 

Page 71

Agenda Item 9

mailto:mark.barry@sefton.gov.uk


Agenda Item 9 

Page | 2 

 

more quickly, provide an increase in the council tax income for use in 
the provision of vital services and reduce the level of council tax 
administration work. 

 

4.    The Consultation 

 
 4.1 The Consultation will ensure that the views of those Council Tax 

payers affected are considered before the decision is made to 
implement the changes from 1st April 2020 

 
 4.2 There is no statutory requirement to consult. However, any proposal to 

reduce discounts would fall within the type of decision that would 
require consultation in Sefton as it involves financial cost that could 
affect more a small number of people. 

 
 4.3 The consultation is specifically targeted at landlords and homeowners 

directly affected by the proposals. However, we will seek the views 
from a cross section of the people in the area including those 
homeowners who will be directly affected. We will consult with 
businesses and organisations that have an interest such as private 
and registered social landlords and housing associations. We will also 
consult with our Parish Councils and Major Preceptors, the Police & 
Crime Commissioner, Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service and the 
Liverpool City Region Combined Authority. 

 
 4.4 An online consultation will be launched, and a hard copy questionnaire 

will be made available. We will write directly to affected parties and 
stakeholders. 

 
 4.5 Our communications plan will include a press release promoting the 

online consultation questionnaire. Information about the survey will be 
made available on the Council’s website and social media. 

 
4.6 The results of this consultation will be reported to the Council 

Members at a Cabinet meeting in January 2020 and will help to inform 
the Council’s approach to empty homes discounts from 1st April 2020. 
The Cabinet recommendation will be considered by full Council at a 
meeting later in January 2020. 

 
4.7 An interim Equalities Impact Assessment has been completed and 

attached as an annex to this report. 
 

 
5. Legal Department Comments 
 
 5.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report and has no comments to make. 
 
 

Page 72

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 9 

Page | 3 

 

6. Recommendations 
 
 
 6.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  

a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the 
Council Tax – Empty Homes Discounts Consultation 

 
  b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above 
consultation. 

 

Annexes 

 

• Council Tax Empty Homes Discounts Consultation Document 

 

  

Page 73

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 9 

Page | 4 

 

•  

 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR USE 
 
Each box contains a form field for you to type in text or select an option by clicking it with 
your mouse.  Some of the boxes show information to help you complete the field when 
you place the cursor on the “click here …” field. 
 
When you have completed the form, save it as a Word document. 

 

Project Title: Council Tax Homes – Empty homes discount consultation 

Is your project linked to: (please choose from the drop-down below) 

A new service - please attach a new Equalitiess Impact Assessment 

Lead officer: Mark Barry Contact 
no  

0151 934 4361 

Designation Revenues & AP Service 
Manager 

E-mail Mark.barry@sefton.gov.uk 

How does your consultation relate to the Council’s Core Purpose (please tick) 

n/a Protect the most vulnerable 

n/a Facilitate confident and resilient communities 

n/a Commission, broker and provide core services 

n/a Place – Leadership and Influencer 

n/a Drivers of change and reform 

 Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity 

 Greater income for social investment 

n/a  Cleaner, Greener 

Which of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Priorities does your Consultation relate 
to (please tick) 

n/a 
Ensure all children have a positive start in life  
 

n/a 
Support people early to prevent and treat avoidable illnesses and reduce 
inequalities in health  
 

n/a 
Support older people and those with long term conditions and disabilities to 
remain independent and in their own homes  

n/a 
Promote positive mental health and wellbeing  
 

Public Engagement & Consultation Panel 

PROJECT PROPOSAL 

Page 74

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 9 

Page | 5 

 

 
Seek to address the wider social, environmental and economic issues that 
contribute to poor health and wellbeing  

n/a 
 

Build capacity and resilience to empower and strengthen communities 

Does this consultation relate to an item on the Forward Plan?  If so which one? 

No 

Other partners involved (please state if internal or external to the Council) 

Internal 

 

(Planned) start date (Planned) end date: What is the allocated budget? 

16/09/19 01/11/19 Limited direct costs anticipated from within 
existing budgets 

Background/Rationale 

Since 1 April 2013, the Government has provided Councils in England with the flexibility to 
provide certain Council Tax discounts relating to empty homes.  
 
The current level of uninhabitable property discount was agreed by Council in January 
2013 and the current level of empty property discount was agreed by Council in January 
2014. Decisions on whether or not to offer local empty homes discounts remain a matter 
for local councils. Where a discount is offered the level of discount and the length of time it 
can be offered for are subject to certain statutory restrictions. 
 
A review of the level of council tax discounts offered in neighbouring authorities indicates 
that Sefton is currently offering the most generous local empty homes discounts in the city 
region. Changing the discounts to offer a lower level of support would incentivise owners of 
empty homes to bring them back in to use more quickly, provide an increase in the council 
tax income for use in the provision of vital services and reduce the level of council tax 
administration work. 
 

Aims & Objectives 

The aim of the consultation is to ensure that the views of those Council Tax payers 
affected are considered before the decision is made to implement changes to discounts 
from 1 April 2020. 

Target Audience 

The consultation will ensure that we have taken views from a cross section of people in the 
borough, including the owners of empty properties that will be directly affected by the 
proposed changes. We will consult with business and organisations of that have an interest 
such as private and registered social landlords and housing associations. We will also 

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 9 

Page | 6 

 

consult with our Parish Councils and Major Preceptors (Police and Crime Commissioner, 
Fire and Rescue Service and the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority) 

 

Methodology (Please also include any details of any accessible methods) 

On-line Consultation (e-consult) 

Make available a hard copy questionnaire 

Support from Customer Service Advisors to complete the questionnaire 

Write to affected parties and stakeholders including landlords. 

 

Communications Plan (If Council, please also contact Corporate Communications) 

Press release promoting the e-consult questionnaire 

Council website and social media 

Letters to private landlords, registered social landlords and owners of properties currently 
declared uninhabitable. 

Broadcast messages in One Stop Shops 

 

Key Message Audience Method 

Empty Homes continue to 
have an impact in our 
communities. They can be a 
health and safety risk to 
others. They can a focal 
point for anti-social 
behaviour and a waste of 
housing when people are in 
need. 

 

Sefton Council will always 
try to work with owners to 
encourage them to bring the 
properties back in to use 
and to increase the amount 
of Council Tax income 
raised from those 
properties. 

As above As Above 

 

Potential barriers to involvement and action to overcome barriers 

Potential barriers that may stop people getting involved in the consultation include: 

Page 76

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 9 

Page | 7 

 

• Lack of awareness of the consultation process 

• Language barriers of ethnic or migrant individuals residing in the borough.  
Information can be made available in other formats and languages if required. 

We will address the above by ensuring we have an effective media campaign to encourage 
participation. The consultation will be available online and offline via e-mail or post. 
Assistance will be available at the One Stop Shops and the Contact Centre for people 
requiring help completing the questionnaire. 

 

How will you protect the confidentiality of participants?  

Comments received will not be attributable to individuals 

 

How and when do you intend to report or publish the findings? 

.The findings of the consultation will be provided in a report to Cabinet and Full Council in 
January 20.2020 

Level and type of patient/public engagement (place a tick in all that apply) 

Tick Level Description 

 Informing 
Giving people information about something (a limited 
opportunity for them to be involved) 

 Consulting 
Getting people’s views to help you develop/change your 
services/plans 

 Deciding together Making decisions using patients’ and public’s views 

 Acting together 
Local people will be involved in making decisions and 
reviewing your plans/services 

 
Supporting local 
initiatives 

Local people will have the opportunity to lead, develop and 
deliver activities independently 

Does your project include: 

 Yes/No If No please explain 

Questionnaire 
(Please attach .  The Panel will 
not be able to consider your 
proposal if it is not available in 
advance for them to consider) 

Yes . 

Other materials  
(i.e. promotional materials) 

No No other promotional material is required for 
the survey. 

Page 77

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 9 

Page | 8 

 

A stakeholder map 
(a tool to help you identify your 
target audience – included in 
toolkit) 

No The target audience has been identified 
though past consultations. 

Reference to existing data or 
information that has already been 
completed  
(i.e. recent consultation/ research 
where results can be used to 
inform your consultation) 

No .There is no statutory requirement to consult. 
However, any proposal to reduce discounts 
on Empty Homes would fall within the type of 
decision that would require consultation in 
Sefton as it involves financial cost that could 
affect more than a small number of people, 

Any other information you would like to provide? 

No 

 

 

 

If you require further information please contact either Jayne Vincent on 0151 934 3733 

 
 

Signature of Project Lead:    Date: 19th August 
2019 
 

Manager Approval:  Date: 19th August 
2019 
 
 

 
Please return this form electronically to:- 
 
Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk  
 
 
  

Page 78

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk


Agenda Item 9 

Page | 9 

 

Council Tax Empty Homes – Interim Equality Impact Assessment 
 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 The Equality Act 2010 outlines how public bodies must have due regard 
to: 

1.1.1 Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 

conduct that is prohibited by or under this act. 

1.1.2 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 

relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

1.1.3 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 
2.0 Protected Characteristics 

2.1 The Equality Act 2010 is clear that there are particular characteristics that 
are intrinsic to an individual against which it would be easy to discriminate. 
Section 149 (the Public Sector Equality Duty) lists the characteristics 
known as ‘protected characteristics’ against which we have to test for 
discrimination. These characteristics are gender, race/ethnicity, religion 
and belief, sexual orientation, age, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, and disability. 

3.0 Identifying Impacts across protected characteristics. 

Through reviewing the proposal it is necessary to identify if and how the 
protected groups may be impacted and to identify any mitigating actions 
regarding the proposed changes and as part of the consultation and 
engagement activity. 

Protected 
Characteristic 

Recommendations / Mitigating Actions 

Gender 

It is not considered that this will impact 
disproportionately on any of the protected 
characteristics. Where the proposed change in 
discounts would cause genuine financial hardship the 
Council will consider exceptional circumstances on a 
case by case basis under its Discretionary Reduction 
in Liability Policy, 

Age As Above 

Disability As Above 

Race / Ethnicity As Above 

Religion or 
belief 

As Above 

Sexual 
Orientation 

As Above 

Gender 
Reassignment 

As Above 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity  

As Above 

 

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 9 

Page | 10 

 

 

Page 80

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 10 
 

 
  

 

 

 Council Tax Empty Homes Discounts Consultation 

 

 

www.sefton.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 81

Agenda Item 9

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


Agenda Item 9 

 

 

Council Tax Empty Homes Discounts Consultation 
 

Have your Say 
 
Proposed changes to Council Tax Discounts for homes that have been deemed 

uninhabitable or have been empty for less than one month. Please complete the survey 

online or send it back to us by 1st November 2019. 

 

Introduction  
 
Since 1 April 2013, the Government has provided Councils in England with the flexibility to 

provide certain Council Tax discounts relating to empty homes. The current level of 

uninhabitable property discount was agreed by Council in January 2013 and the current 

level of empty property discount was agreed by Council in January 2014. A review of the 

level of council tax discounts offered in neighbouring authorities indicates that Sefton is 

currently offering the most generous local empty homes discounts in the city region. 

Properties that have been empty for less than 1 month currently receive a discount of 

100% for up to one month. Properties that have been deemed uninhabitable receive a 

discount of 50% for up to one month. 

The Council is proposing to make changes to Council Tax Discounts on Empty Homes 

from 1st April 2020. Properties that are currently classed as uninhabitable would no longer 

receive a discount and be subject to a full Council Tax charge. Properties that have been 

empty for less than one month would have the discount reduced from 100% to 50%. 

There are currently 178 homes that receive the uninhabitable discount and 435 homes that 

receive the empty home discount. The proposed reductions in the discounts are intended 

to incentivise owners of empty properties to bring them back into use, to provide discounts 

at a level consistent with other council's in the Liverpool City Region, and to increase the 

amount of Council Tax income available for the provision of vital services.  

As well as changing the level of discounts, there are other  initiatives to help bring empty 

homes back into use. For more information on how Sefton Council sets out its objectives in 

relation to Empty Homes please see ‘The Empty Homes Plan 2019 – 2024’ on 

www.sefton.gov.uk/emptyhomesplan 

 Sefton Council will always try to encourage and work with owners to bring properties back 

into use however in some cases enforcement action is required.  Owners of long term 

empty homes can seek advice for dealing with them from the Council’s Housing Standards 

Team by e-mailing private.housing@sefton.gov.uk   

We would like to know what you think about the proposal to reduce the Council Tax empty 

homes discounts in Sefton from 1st April 2020. 

 

 

Page 82

Agenda Item 9

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/emptyhomesplan
mailto:private.housing@sefton.gov.uk


Agenda Item 9 

 

 

How to share your views 

The consultation is open from 16th September 2019 to 1st November 2019. You can 

respond to the consultation by  

• Completing an online survey 

• Downloading a copy of the survey and returning it to us by: 

Post: Council Tax Survey PO Box 21 Bootle,  Merseyside, L20 3USEmail 

Email: Counciltax.Consultation@sefton.gov.uk  

Visit: Bootle One Stop Shop, 324 Stanley Road, Bootle, L20 3ET (Monday to Friday, 9am 

to 5pm) 

Visit: Southport One Stop Shop, Cambridge Arcade, Southport (Monday to Friday, 9am to 

5pm) 

Having Problems with the survey? 

If you need help to complete the survey or do not understand what the survey is about and 

want to talk to someone about it please call our Contact Centre on 0345 140 0845 

(Monday to Friday, 8am to 6pm, closed weekends and Bank Holidays) or email us at: 

Counciltax.Consultation@sefton.gov.uk 

How your views will be used? 

The results of this consultation will be reported to the Council Members at a Cabinet 

meeting in January 2020 and will help to inform the Council’s approach to - empty homes 

discounts from 1st April 2020. The Cabinet recommendation will be considered by full 

Council at a meeting later in January 2020. 

What we are consulting on? 

Since 1 April 2013, the Government has provided Councils in England with the flexibility to 

provide certain Council Tax discounts relating to empty homes. The current level of 

uninhabitable property discount was agreed by Council in January 2013 and the current 

level of empty property discount was agreed by Council in January 2014. 

A review of the level of council tax discounts offered in neighbouring authorities indicates 

that Sefton is currently offering the most generous local empty homes discounts in the city 

region.  

• Properties that have been deemed uninhabitable receive a discount of 50% for up 

to twelve months.  

• Properties that have been empty for less than 1 month currently receive a discount 

of 100% for up to one month. 

Changing the discounts to offer a lower level of support would incentivise property owners 

to bring empty homes back in to use and provide an increase in the council tax income for 

use in the provision of vital services. 

Page 83

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Counciltax.Consultation@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:Counciltax.Consultation@sefton.gov.uk


Agenda Item 9 

 

 

This consultation seeks your views on two proposals. To reduce the Council Tax 

discounts on uninhabitable properties for up to 12 months from 50% to 0%. Also to 

reduce the Council Tax discount during the first month it is empty from 100% to 

50%. The proposed changes would be introduced from 1st April 2020.Question 1 

Are you responding to this survey as? 

(Please tick all the boxes that apply) 

 
(a) A member of the public   

(b)  A landlord of a property in Sefton that is empty    

(c) A landlord of a property in Sefton that isn’t empty   

(d) The owner of a property in Sefton that has been declared 
uninhabitable 

 

(e) An elected Member   

(f) A local business owner   

 

Important Note:  These proposals do not affect empty properties that are exempt from 

Council Tax due to the special circumstances of the owner. For example, where the owner 

has gone to live elsewhere to receive care, or provide care to someone else, or the 

property is left empty due to service in the Armed Forces, or where the owner has died 

(and probate is yet to be granted).  

Question 2 How strongly do you agree or disagree with the proposal to reduce the 

Council Tax discount on uninhabitable properties for a period of up to 12 months from 50% 

to 0% from 1st April 2020. Please select one option only. 

O Strongly agree 

O Agree 

O Neither agree nor disagree 

O Disagree 

O Strongly disagree 

Question 3 How strongly do you agree or disagree with the proposal to reduce the 

Council Tax discount on properties that have been empty for less than one month from 

100% to 50% from 1st April 2020. Please select one option only. 

O Strongly agree 

O Agree 

O Neither agree nor disagree 

O Disagree 

O Strongly disagree 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 84

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 9 

 

 

 
 
Question 4 Do you have any comments relating to these proposals? (Maximum of 150 
words) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Privacy Notice 
 
How we will use your data. 
 
Any personal information that you provide as part of this consultation will be handled and 
used in compliance with the principles of the General Data Protection Regulations (EU 
2016/679). Regardless of whether its electronic or on paper it will be sorted and processed 
securely and deleted after twelve months. 
 

The lawful basis on why we use this data 
 
We also ask the equality monitoring questions in accordance with the Equalities Act 2010 
as we want to understand whether there will be any impact on the protected groups 
because of these proposals.   
 

Confidentiality of Data 
 
This information will only be shared with the team responsible for the consultation and 
Elected Members to aid their decisions. All the data captured in this consultation and in 
reporting on the outcomes will be anonymised. 
  

Requesting Access to your Personal Data 
 
Your identity and contact details will not be published by us at any stage without your 
consent. If you request access to your personal data you have the right to: 
 

• Object to processing of personal data that is likely to cause or is causing damage or 
distress. 

• Prevent processing for the purposes of direct marketing. 

• Object to decisions being taken by automated means. 

• In certain circumstances, have inaccurate personal data rectified, blocked, erased 
or destroyed. 

• The right to lodge a complaint with the supervisory authority (the Information 
Commissioner’s Office) 

• Withdraw consent for the processing. 
 

 

Page 85

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 9 

 

 

 
 
 

Why we ask for personal information 
 
Asking for personal information helps the team responsible for the consultation understand 
whether a group or groups are particularly affected by the proposals. Asking for your 
postcode helps the team understand whether the proposals have a greater or lesser 
impact on a particular area of the borough. 
 

Why we ask for your e-mail address 
 
We only ask for your e-mail address to return a copy of your survey to you if you request it. 
Your e-mail will not be used for any other purposes. 
 
For more information, please contact Catherine Larkin - Data Protection Officer at: 
Email – ino.information@sefton.gov.uk 
 
Telephone – 0345 140 0845 

 
ABOUT YOU 
 
The Council asks equality monitoring questions to help it comply with the Equality Act 
2010 to help us understand who is responding to the survey and to help us ensure that 
there is equality of opportunity for protected groups of people. This information is optional 
and you are not required to provide this information. By completing this section you are 
consenting to this information being collected, stored and analysed for equality monitoring. 
 
Do you consent for us to use your personal data in this way?      
 
Yes  No 
 
 
 
If yes please enter the date you gave consent. 
 

Question 5  

What is the first part of your home Postcode? (for example: L20; PR8) 

 
 
 

 
Question 6 Are you 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 A man 

 A woman 

 Prefer not to say 

 

 

  

Page 86

Agenda Item 9

mailto:ino.information@sefton.gov.uk


Agenda Item 9 

 

 

 
 
Question 7. How old are you? 
  
 

16-17     18-29       30-39  40-49     50-59 
 
 60-69     70-79       80-84  85+ 
 
 
Question 8. Please read the following statement … 
 
 If you have cancer, diabetes or HIV this would be classed as ‘disability’ under the 

Equality Act 2010.  Do you consider yourself as being ‘disabled’? 
 

 

No   I prefer not to say  

Autistic Spectrum Disorder, 
Asperger’s Syndrome 

 Mental Health problems  

Problems seeing  Problems with my hearing  

I have difficulty walking or moving 
about; or I use a wheelchair 

 An illness that affects your 
daily living on a long-term 
basis (for example diabetes, 
heart disease, cancer) 

 

 
 
Question 10. Ethnicity – do you identify as …. 
 

Asian: 

Bangladeshi  Indian  

Pakistani  Other Asian background  

 
  
 
 

 Yes 

 No 

 Prefer not to say 

  

 
Question 9. Disability: Do you have any of the following (please tick all that 

apply): 
 

 

  

Page 87

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 9 

 

 

 
 
Black 
 

African  British  

Caribbean  Other black background  

 
 Chinese 

Chinese  Other Chinese background  

 
 
Mixed Ethnic Background:- 
 

Asian and White  Black African and White  

Black Caribbean and White  Other mixed  

 
 White 

British  English  

Irish  Scottish  

Welsh  Polish  

Latvian  Gypsy/Traveller  

Other White background  Prefer not to say  

 

Question 11. Do you have a religion or belief? 
 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Question 12.  If you ticked yes, please tick one of the following 
 

Buddhist  Christian  

Hindu  Jewish  

Muslim  Sikh  

No religion  Prefer not to say  

 Yes 
 

No 
 

 Prefer not to say 

  

Page 88

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item 9 

 

 

Other – please specify     

 
 
 
Question 13. Relationships (also called sexual orientation) are you?  
 

Heterosexual  Bisexual  

Gay  Lesbian  

Prefer not to say  Other  

 
 
 
Question 14. Do you live in the gender you were given at birth? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Thank you for completing the survey. 

 
When you return the survey you give us permission to analyse and include your response 
in our results.  
 
Please provide an email address if you would like a PDF copy of your response returned 
to you. 
 
e-mail address  

 Yes 

 No 

 Prefer not to say 

 

Page 89

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10 

pg. - 1 - 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: Friday 13th September 2019 
 
Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity – 

Bootle Golf Course Development  
 
Report of:  Martin Sarbutts Facilities Development and Management Officer, 

Green Sefton, 0151 934 2932 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To receive information with regard to the consultation plans being 

developed with regard to the Bootle Golf Course Development 
 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is 

to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
3. Bootle Golf Course Development 
 

3.1 Bootle Golf Course returned to Sefton Council operations in 2013 after 

the operators went out of business and is managed by Green Sefton.  

3.2 Bootle Golf Course has suffered for many years of little or no investment 

in course infrastructure (including the dilapidated clubhouse) and this has 

resulted in a drop in use of the sites. By investing in the site, we can 

encourage greater use again, benefiting people’s health and well-being. 

3.3 To help ensure that the developments are what customers want, we are 

proposing a soft consultation to understand the collective wish list of 

items for development that will shape the way forward for the site. 

4.    The Consultation 
 
 4.1 Consultation will be via a short questionnaire to members, casual golfers 

as well as local residents, schools and colleges. The consultation will 
focus on three areas of development: buildings, practice facilities and the 
course. 

   
  Consultation will be promoted via social media channels and within the 

golf shop and will seek to gather support for proposed developments on 
the site. 

 

Page 91

Agenda Item 10



Agenda Item 10 
 

pg. - 2 - 

 4.2  It is expected that this will just be the first stage in this consultation, that 
will inform future plans and consultations in due course. 

 
5. Legal Department Comments 
 
 5.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report and has no comments to make. 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
 6.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the 

Bootle Golf Course Development 
 
  b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above consultation. 
 

Page 92

Agenda Item 10



 

pg. 3 

 

Public Engagement & Consultation Panel 

PROJECT PROPOSAL  INSTRUCTIONS FOR USE 
 
Each box contains a form field for you to type in text or select an option by clicking it with your 
mouse.  Some of the boxes show information to help you complete the field when you place the 
cursor on the “click here …” field. 
 
When you have completed the form, save it as a Word document. 

 

Project Title: Bootle Golf Course Consultation 

Is your project linked to: (please choose from the drop-down below) 

A new service - please attach a new Equalitiess Impact Assessment 

Lead officer: Martin Sarbutts Contact 
no  

2932 

Designation Facility Development 
and Management 
Officer 

E-mail Martin.sarbutts@sefton.gov.uk 

How does your consultation relate to the Council’s Core Purpose (please tick) 

 Protect the most vulnerable 

 Facilitate confident and resilient communities 

 Commission, broker and provide core services 

 Place – Leadership and Influencer 

 Drivers of change and reform 

✓ Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity 

 Greater income for social investment 

 Cleaner, Greener 

Which of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Priorities does your Consultation relate 
to (please tick) 

 
Ensure all children have a positive start in life  
 

✓ 
Support people early to prevent and treat avoidable illnesses and reduce 
inequalities in health  
 

✓ 
Support older people and those with long term conditions and disabilities to 
remain independent and in their own homes  

✓ 
Promote positive mental health and wellbeing  
 

✓ 
Seek to address the wider social, environmental and economic issues that 
contribute to poor health and wellbeing  



 
Build capacity and resilience to empower and strengthen communities 

Page 93

Agenda Item 10



Agenda Item 10 
 

pg. 4 

Does this consultation relate to an item on the Forward Plan?  If so which one? 

No 

Other partners involved (please state if internal or external to the Council) 

No 

 

(Planned) start 
date 

(Planned) end 
date: 

What is the allocated budget? 

Septmeber 2019 October 2019 £100 

Background/Rationale 

 

Bootle Golf Course has suffered for many years of little or no investment in course 

infrastructure (including the dilapidated clubhouse) and this has resulted in a drop in use 

of the sites. By investing in the site, we can encourage greater use again, benefiting 

people’s health and well-being. 

To help ensure that the developments are what customers want, we are proposing a soft 

consultation to understand the collective wish list of items for development that will shape 

the way forward for the site 

 

Aims & Objectives 

Shape the way forward for investment on the course 

 

Target Audience 

Golfers (members and pay and play golfers) 

Local Residents and schools 

 

Methodology (Please also include any details of any accessible methods) 

Simple questionnaire to rank proposed investment ideas  

The surveys will be promoted through the Golf Shop, social media via the Green Sefton 
and Sefton Council.  

Findings will be made public via social media and any groups and schools will receive 
result feedback. Any issues that a rise the project team will seek to address. 

 

 

Page 94

Agenda Item 10



Agenda Item 10 
 

pg. 5 

Communications Plan (If Council, please also contact Corporate Communications) 

 

Key Message Audience Method 

Investment, improvements    Members  On-line survey, survey, 
discussion  

Investment, improvements Casual golfers  On-line survey, survey, 
discussion  

Investment, improvements Local Residents On-line survey, survey, 
discussion  

Investment, improvements Schools and Colleges On-line survey, survey, 
discussion 

 

Potential barriers to involvement and action to overcome barriers 

 

None 

How will you protect the confidentiality of participants?  

Names and contact details of Consultees will be kept safely on file, and any feedback will 
be kept as general statement and not assigned to a particular person. This information will 
not be mandatory and those consulted will offer their details on a voluntary basis.  
Folowing the guidelines of data protection.  

 

How and when do you intend to report or publish the findings? 

All findings will be published on Sefton Council website and via Social Media as well as in 
the Golf Shop.  A link to the reports will be published via social media.  All groups 
participating will be notified reports are available and findings will be sent upon request.  
Any individual who participated will be asked if they wish to receive feedback and 
information will be sent accordingly.  

Level and type of patient/public engagement (place a tick in all that apply) 

Tick Level Description 

 Informing 
Giving people information about something (a limited opportunity 
for them to be involved) 

✓ Consulting 
Getting people’s views to help you develop/change your 
services/plans 

 
Deciding 
together 

Making decisions using patients’ and public’s views 

Page 95

Agenda Item 10



Agenda Item 10 
 

pg. 6 

 Acting together 
Local people will be involved in making decisions and reviewing 
your plans/services 

 
Supporting local 
initiatives 

Local people will have the opportunity to lead, develop and 
deliver activities independently 

Does your project include: 

 Yes/No If No please explain 

Questionnaire 
(Please attach .  The Panel 
will not be able to consider 
your proposal if it is not 
available in advance for 
them to consider) 

Yes . 

Other materials  
(i.e. promotional materials) 

No  

A stakeholder map 
(a tool to help you identify your 
target audience – included in 
toolkit) 

No  

Reference to existing data or 
information that has already 
been completed  
(i.e. recent consultation/ 
research where results can be 
used to inform your 
consultation) 

No . 

Any other information you would like to provide? 

Click here to enter text. 

 

 

 

If you require further information please contact either Jayne Vincent on 0151 934 3733 

 
  

Page 96

Agenda Item 10



Agenda Item 10 
 

pg. 7 

 

Signature of Project Lead:  Date: 28/08/19 
 
Manager Approval: Date: 
 
 

 
Please return this form electronically to:- 
 
Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk  
 
 

 
 

 

  

Page 97

Agenda Item 10

mailto:Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk


Agenda Item 10 
 

pg. 8 

Bootle Golf Course Consultation 
 
Green Sefton are looking at improving the course and facilities at Bootle Golf Course. 
There are no funds available for investment at this time, but we would like your opinion on 
priorities and options, which will help form the way forward in any future developments. 
 
Question 1 – How often do you use the course? 
Daily 
Weekly 
Monthly 
More than once a year 
Occasionally 
Question 2 – membership 
Are you: 
A contract holder 
Pay and Play Golfer 
Local Resident 
 
Question 3 - We would like to know what you think of the current condition of the Golf 
Course. Please score the following from (EG) 1 very poor 2 poor 3 adequate 4 good 5 
excellent: 
Shop – reception 
Shop - provisions 
Changing rooms  
Toilets 
Parking 
Access 
Information 
Greens and GM 
Etc etc 
Other – please specify 
 
Question 4 - Please rank the following in preference for improvement with 1 being the 
highest priority: 
 
Built Facilities (rank 1 – 6) 
Changing Rooms 
Club Room 
Toilets 
Shop 
Showers 
Lockers 
Other (please state) 
 
Practice Facilities (rank 1 – 6) 
Driving Range 
Floodlights 
Chipping area 
Putting green 
Bunker area 
Other (please state) 
 

Page 98

Agenda Item 10



Agenda Item 10 
 

pg. 9 

 
 
 
Course Improvements (rank 1 - 4)  
Improved Irrigation 
Buggies for hire 
Hole signage 
Litter bins 
 
 
 
Question 5: overall what would you like to see on site in the future? 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Bootle Golf Course Consultation 
Communication Plan 

 

Key Message Audience Method 

Investment, improvements    Members  On-line survey, survey, 
discussion  

Investment, improvements Casual golfers  On-line survey, survey, 
discussion  

Investment, improvements Local Residents On-line survey, survey, 
discussion  

Investment, improvements Schools and Colleges On-line survey, survey, 
discussion 

 

Page 99

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on Friday 12th July 2019
	5 Feedback & Evaluation Report - Mental Health/Resilience
	6 Update Report - Children & Young People's Plan / Verbal Update - Health & Wellbeing Strategy Engagement
	7 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - Southport Market
	7a. Southport Market consulation panel Questionnaire - draftv2

	8 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - Green Lane / Formby Conservation Area Management Plan
	9 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - Council Tax Empty Homes Discount Consultation
	9a. Council Tax Empty Homes Discounts Consultation Offline

	10 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - Bootle Golf Course

